
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
 
Tuesday, September 27, 2011                                                                    City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
  
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Fire Prevention Week Proclamation – Week of October 9, 2011 – Captain Larry Rabel 
• Make a Difference Day Proclamation – October 22, 2011 – Glenn Akramoff 
• National Community Planning Month Proclamation – October 2011 – Richard Hart 
• Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation – October 2011 – Victoria Throm 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Approval of Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Ordinance Granting Covington Water District a Franchise (Akramoff) 
C-4. Approve Memo of Understanding with King County for Coordinated Policy and Decision 

Making During an Emergency (Akramoff) 
C-5. Approve Contract for Storm Sewer Cleaning (Akramoff) 

 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  September 8 Meeting. 
• Economic Development Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  August 25 and September 22 Meetings. 

   Future Meetings: 
• Arts:  September meeting canceled; next meeting October 13. 
• Parks:  September meeting canceled; next meeting October 19. 
• Planning:  September meetings canceled; next meeting October 6. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Comments from the Public Regarding the Recently Adopted Medical Marijuana 

Moratorium (Springer/Hart) 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Ordinance Amending the Covington Comprehensive Plan (Hart) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  If needed 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  



 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  September 13, 2011   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  AUGUST 23, 2011 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES AND SEPTEMBER 13, 2011 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES.   

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to approve the August 23, 2011 City Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes and September 13, 2011 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes.  
 
 
 

1 of 79



Unapproved Draft – August 23, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, August 23, 2011 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, August 
23, 2011, at 7:06 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Lanza.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Karla 
Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara 
Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda as amended to remove Item 1.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
 Jackie Berganio of King County Mental Health accepted the September 2011 National 

Recovery Month proclamation. 
 

 Community Relations Coordinator Karla Slate accepted the September 10, 2011 Third 
Annual Clean Covington Day proclamation. 
 

 David Hull of King County Metro Transit gave a presentation on Metro Transit Strategic 
Plan and Congestion Reduction Charge. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 79



Unapproved Draft – August 23, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 2 

George Pearson, 18623 SE 265th Street, Covington resident, spoke regarding Timberlane’s 
ongoing problems with several different code enforcement issues. 
 
Garth Hanson, Timberlane, Covington resident, spoke regarding a fence code violation he 
received and his feeling that city codes are “all over the place.”  Mr. Hanson also mentioned that 
he felt the street he lives on in Timberlane should have a “no parking allowed” sign installed. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Vouchers #25716-25778, in the Amount of $121,634.10, Dated August 8, 2011; and 

Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000090903-1000090921, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct 
Deposits in the Amount of $138,662.22, Dated August 5, 2011. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Arts Commission – Secretary Rudi Sullivan reported on the July 7 and August 11 meetings. 

: 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair David Aldous reported on the July 20 and August 17 
meetings. 
 
Planning Commission – Community Development Director Richard Hart reported on the July 
7, July 21, August 4, and August 18 meetings. 
 
Human Services Commission – Chair Haris Ahmad reported on the July 14 and August 11 
meetings. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the July 28 meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Award Aqua Vista Drainage Construction Contract.  (Removed from the agenda.) 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave a staff report to Council on the reason this item was 
removed from the agenda. 
 
2.  Consider Agreement to Conduct Pavement Condition Assessment and ADA Inventory. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Perteet to conduct a citywide 
pavement condition assessment and ADA inventory.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Consider SEARCH Interlocal Agreement. 

3 of 79



Unapproved Draft – August 23, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 3 

 
Personnel & Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm and City Manager Derek Matheson gave 
the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and discussed this item. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to accept the staff recommendation 
Alternative No. 1, to direct the city manager to negotiate modifications to the interlocal 
agreement to address the city attorney’s concerns and then present the interlocal 
agreement to Council for approval. 
 
4.  Consider Letter to Ashton Regarding the City Hall Lease. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Wagner seconded to 
authorize the city manager to send a letter to Ashton Capital Corporation in substantially 
the form of Attachment 1 of this agenda item stating the city will not exercise the early 
termination clause in its lease.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
5.  Discuss Public Engagement Process Charter. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers discussed this item. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to request staff to 1) look for a catchier 
name for the committee; 2) use an invitation process to seek qualified participants; 3) look 
into the option of a facilitator; and 4) not arbitrarily exclude qualified people but make 
sure there is a significant representation of registered voters within the city limits on the 
committee. 
 
6.  2011 Second Quarter Financial Reports. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff briefed Council on and requested approval to submit a 
King County Office of Emergency Management Coordinated Policy and Decision Making 
Memorandum of Understanding for Disasters on a future meeting consent agenda.  Council 
agreed. 
 
Mr. Akramoff also updated Council on a couple of new pedestrian transportation issues brought 
to the city’s attention along with an existing list and requested Council’s feedback. 

4 of 79



Unapproved Draft – August 23, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 4 

Mayor Harto suggested that the City Council could benefit from a study session or presentation 
from staff regarding the criteria used to determine the need and order of priority for crosswalks, 
stop signs, etc.  Mayor Harto also suggested that the seniors at Covington Place Apartments and 
homeowner associations could benefit from a presentation. 
 
Mr. Akramoff noted this item would be added to a future Council meeting agenda, and staff 
would look into the follow-up presentations for other focus groups. 
 
Councilmember Scott noted he would not be at the next Council meeting due to a vacation in 
Arizona. 
 
Councilmember Snoey asked if Covington had resources to coordinate with the other 
jurisdictions to address gang wars.  City Manager Derek Matheson indicated he would discuss 
the issue with Chief Klason and report back to Council. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:37 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

5 of 79



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 13, 2011 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 13, 2011, at 7:01 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Wayne Snoey and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Jim Scott. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Scott:  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Kevin Klason, Covington 
Police Chief; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Salina 
Lyons, Senior Planner; Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst; and Joan Michaud, 
Deputy City Clerk. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Pacific Raceways President Jason Fiorito gave a presentation on Pacific Raceways which 
included the history of the race track, current use, and an expansion proposal in front of 
the King County Council. 

• Lila Henderson, Director of Maple Valley Food Bank, accepted the Mayor’s Day of 
Concern for the Hungry Proclamation. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
The following people spoke regarding their opposition to the Pacific Raceways expansion plans 
located in unincorporated King County at 31001 144th Avenue SE, Kent 98042. 
 
 

6 of 79



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 2 

• Don Huling, 17117 SE 329th Street, Auburn; 
• Sandra Gaither, 15032 SE Auburn-Black Diamond Road, Auburn; 
• Jeff Guddat, 28920 134th Place SE, Auburn; 
• Larry Worden, 13445 SE 288th Street, Auburn; 
• Linda Worden, 13445 SE 288th Street, Auburn; 
• Peter Rimbos, Greater Maple Valley Unincorporated Area Council, Chair of Growth 

Management Committee, Vice Chair of Transportation Committee, 19711 241st Avenue 
SE, Maple Valley; 

• Sally Neary, representing Sierra Club South King County, 22608 115th Place SE, Kent; 
• Julia Wood, 32028 199th Avenue SE, approximately three miles outside Covington city 

limits; 
• Leah Boehm, 34 South 333RD Lane, Federal Way (moved away from Pacific Raceways); 
• Pete Tetlow, Soos Creek Area Response Chair, 14426 SE Auburn-Black Diamond Road, 

Auburn; 
• Mark Boehm, 34 South 333rd Lane, Federal Way  (moved away from Pacific Raceways); 
• Tracy Felton, 15426 SE 318th Street, Auburn (lives next to Pacific Raceways). 

 
The following people spoke regarding their support of the Pacific Raceways expansion plans 
located in unincorporated King County at 31001 144th Avenue SE, Kent 98042. 
 

• Jennifer Nowland, R.A.C.E. Coordinator, 15333 SE 304th Place, Kent, (lives next to 
Pacific Raceways); 

• Yvonne Simmermon, lived in Covington area for 38 years, Maple Valley resident now. 
 
Morris Malakoff, President of Prestige Park II Homeowners Association, 25430 156th Place 
SE, Covington resident, spoke concerning Agenda Item No. 2, Consider Resolution Adopting 
Street Lighting Policy, and requested Council to amend the policy before approving. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Approval of Minutes:  August 9, 2011 City Council Special and Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers:  Vouchers #25779-25837, in the Amount of $382,747.01, Dated 

August 24, 2011; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000106917-1000106936, Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $143,865.01, Dated August 19, 2011; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000127634-1000127652, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct 
Deposits in the Amount of $143,055.65, Dated September 2, 2011. 
 

C-3. Approve Interlocal Agreement with King County for Regional Affordable Housing 
Program. 

 
C-4. Approve Interim Planning Commission Appointment. 
 

 

7 of 79



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 3 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Public Engagement Process Charter. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and feedback. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
adopt the charter as amended to add the word “Covington” before registered voters under 
the Structure heading portion of the charter.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Consider Resolution Adopting Street Lighting Policy. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item including addressing 
the concerns Mr. Malakoff voiced during Public Comments. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
A STREET LIGHT POLICY. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 11-07 providing for a street light policy.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Consider an Ordinance Granting Covington Water District a Franchise. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmember provided comments. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to add this ordinance to the Consent Agenda 
for the next meeting. 
 
4.  Discuss the Grant Funding Project Agreement for Construction of Covington Community 
Park. 
 
5.  Discuss the Grant Contract for Construction of the Soccer Field at Covington Community 
Park. 
 
Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas gave the staff report on these items. 
 

8 of 79



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 4 

Councilmembers asked questioned, provided comments, and discussed. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
authorize the city manager to sign the grant funding project agreement for construction of 
Covington Community Park and the grant funding contract for construction of the soccer 
field at the Covington Community Park.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Pacific Raceways President Jason Fiorito, spoke regarding allegations against him during the 
first public comment. 
 
Bryan Higgins, Covington resident, Parks & Recreation Commissioner, spoke regarding the 
grant funding for the park project and thanked Council for its support in authorizing the grants to 
construct the park and soccer field. 
 
Julia Wood, thanked Council for approving the soccer field and park grants and suggested the 
public pay a parking fee or event fee to help offset the maintenance costs. 
 
The following people spoke regarding their opposition of the Pacific Raceways expansion plans 
located in unincorporated King County at 31001 144th Avenue SE, Kent 98042. 
 

• Linda Worden, 13445 SE 288th Street, Auburn; 
• Sandra Gaither, 15032 SE Auburn-Black Diamond Road, Auburn; 
• Jeff Guddat, 28920 134th Place SE, Auburn; 
• Julia Wood, 32028 199th Avenue SE, approximately three miles outside Covington city 

limits; 
• Pete Tetlow, Soos Creek Area Response Chair, 14426 SE Auburn-Black Diamond Road, 

Auburn. 
 
The following people spoke regarding their support of the Pacific Raceways expansion plans 
located in unincorporated King County at 31001 144th Avenue SE, Kent 98042. 
 

• Don Kitch, Jr., Proformance Driving School owner. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
Mayor Harto extended the Council’s appreciation for the respectful way that the audience 
expressed their opinion on both sides and advised that while the Covington City Council is not 
involved in the decision making process for the Pacific Raceways project, the Council 
appreciated the opportunity to hear the different perspectives and the educational opportunity 
provided.   

9 of 79



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 27, 2011 
 

 5 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:51 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

10 of 79



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 27, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #25838-25897, in the Amount of $187,780.78, Dated 
September 7, 2011; Vouchers #25898-25987, in the Amount of $2,047.40, Dated September 
15, 2011; City of Covington Voucher #1043 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000145925-
1000145931 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000146010-1000146015, Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $141,811.81, Dated September 16, 2011. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #25838-25897, in the Amount 
of $187,780.78, Dated September 7, 2011; Vouchers #25898-25987, in the 
Amount of $2,047.40, Dated September 15, 2011; City of Covington 
Voucher #1043 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000145925-1000145931 
and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000146010-1000146015, Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $141,811.81, Dated September 
16, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 of 79



12 of 79



13 of 79



14 of 79



15 of 79



16 of 79



17 of 79



18 of 79



19 of 79



20 of 79



21 of 79



22 of 79



23 of 79



24 of 79



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 27, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE GRANTING COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT 

A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, 
REPLACE AND REPAIR A WATER SYSTEM WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-
WAY OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Franchise Ordinance between City of Covington and Covington Water District 
 
PREPARED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
                               Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Staff presented for discussion at the September 13th City Council meeting the draft proposal of 
the negotiated franchise with Covington Water District.  Having addressed the comments and 
concerns, staff is bringing the issue back for approval.  The term of the original agreement was 
five years and will end in October 2011.   
 
The major changes to the franchise include:  
Section 1.  (g)  Types of Work:  The work has been divided into three classes of work:  Class A 
(daily operation activities) which requires no permit; Class B (regular scheduled maintenance 
and repair activities) which requires a minor permit; and Class C (repair and capital projects) 
which requires full City permits to undertake the task.   
 
Section 4.  Relocation of Facilities:  Specifying coordination on projects, information sharing on 
perspective projects and cost sharing for relocation of facilities.  
 
Section 9.  Franchise Term:  Increasing the franchise term from five to ten years (end date 
November 30, 2021) and providing a provision for automatic renewal for additional 10 years if 
mutually agreed upon.  
 
The pending outcome of the Lane v. Seattle case will be addressed at the time of the court ruling 
by both parties.  The Lane case is the pending litigation that implies that cities are required to 
provide and pay for the part of the water system that is for fire suppression.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
None 
 

25 of 79



FISCAL IMPACT:   
None:  Franchise fees will not be assessed as they were not in the last agreement.  This is 
consistent with general practice in the industry as it is rare for cities to charge utility districts 
franchise fees.  In the agreement the City does reserve the right to assess them in the future. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:      X   Ordinance         Resolution        Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt an ordinance granting a non-exclusive franchise with 
Covington Water District. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director 
 

26 of 79



ATTACHMENT 1 

 -1- 

ORDINANCE NO. 09-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON GRANTING 
COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT A NON-EXCLUSIVE 
FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, REPLACE 
AND REPAIR A WATER SYSTEM WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-
WAY OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AND 
FIXING A TIME WHEN THE SAME SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Covington Water District, a Washington special purpose municipal corporation 
(“District"), owns water facilities (“Facilities”) located in the City of Covington, a Washington non-
charter municipal code city ("City"), and a portion of such Facilities are located within the City right-of-
way (ROW) as hereinafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 57.08.005(3) and (5) authorize the District to conduct water throughout the 
District and any city and town therein, and construct and lay facilities along and upon public highways, 
roads and streets within and without the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 35A.47.040 authorizes the City to grant non-exclusive franchises for the use 
of the public streets above or below the surface of the ground by publicly owned and operated water and 
sewer facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and the District have drafted a Franchise Agreement to provide for the 
operation of District Facilities within the City right-of-way; 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Covington do ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Definitions.  Where used in this franchise (the "Franchise") these terms have the 
following meanings: 
 

 (a) "City" means the City of Covington, a Washington Municipal Corporation, and 
its respective successors and assigns. 

 
 (b) "District" means the Covington Water District, a Washington special purpose 
Municipal Corporation, and its respective successors and assigns. 

 
 (c) "Franchise Area" means any, every and all of the roads, streets, avenues, alleys, 
highways and rights-of-way of the City as now laid out, platted, dedicated or improved in 
District's service area within the present corporate boundaries of the City, and as such corporate 
boundaries may be extended within District's service area by annexation or otherwise. 

 
 (d) "Facilities" means tanks, meters, pipes, mains, services, valves, blow-offs, vaults, 
fire hydrants, risers, manholes, generators, electrical control panels, power meters, telephone 
connections, pressure reducing valves ("PRVs"), pump stations, meter stations, lift stations, lines, 
and all other necessary or convenient facilities and appurtenances thereto, whether the same be 
located over or under ground. 
 

(e) "Ordinance" means this Ordinance No. 09-11, which sets forth the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise. 

 

27 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -2- 

(f) "Revenue" means income derived by the District from the sale of metered water 
to customers whose connections to the District's water system are located within the City. 
Revenue shall not include: late fees; impact or mitigation fees; any type of connection charges, 
general facilities charges, or local facilities charges; grants; contributed assets (CIAC); loans; 
income from legal settlements not related to water sales to District customers; income from 
telecommunication leases or licenses; income from real property or from real property sales; 
income from the sale of surplus equipment, tools or vehicles; interest income; penalties; hydraulic 
modeling fees; water system extension agreement fees and charges; income from street lights; 
labor, equipment and materials charges; or any other fees and charges.  
 

(g) Types of Work:  Class A, B or C: 
 

“Class A work” means work that has little or no effect on the ROW. Examples of 
Class A work include accessing existing manholes, hand holes and vaults, 
repairing or maintaining hydrants while breaking four (4) square feet or less of 
pavement, raising valves, trimming trees, providing cathodic protection, 
replacing above-ground meters, and installing water sampling stations. A permit 
is not needed for Class A work. 
 
“Class B work” means work that has a moderate effect on the ROW. Examples 
of Class B work include  making an initial pavement cut of between four (4) and 
fifteen (15) square feet, removing two (2) or fewer panels of sidewalk and 
associated curb and gutter, trenching the ROW for twenty-five (25) linear feet or 
less outside the paved area, installing short side utility services while disturbing 
between four (4) and fifteen (15) square feet of pavement, pushing under a road 
for pipe-bursting / pipe replacement work, and installing underground vaults.  
The permit requirements, if any, for Class B work shall be determined by the 
City on a case-by-case basis. Any Class B work requiring traffic control or 
inspection shall require a permit. A programmatic permit may be issued by the 
City for low-impact and routine Class B work including, but not limited to, 
flushing.  
 
“Class C work” means work that has a major impact on the ROW. Examples of 
Class C work includes constructing any capital related work, installation of 100 
linear feet or more of underground utility piping within the ROW or attaching to 
any bridge structure, and constructing a main line or any open cut road crossing.  
A permit is always necessary for Class C work. 

 
Any work to be performed on SE 272nd (Kent Kangley Road) shall be classified only as either Class B or 
Class C work. 
 
 Section 2.  Franchise. 
 
 A. Facilities within Franchise Area.  The City does hereby grant to District the right, 
privilege, authority and franchise to construct, install, lay, support, attach, maintain, repair, renew, 
replace, remove, enlarge, operate and use Facilities in, upon, over, under, along, through and across the 
Franchise Area for purposes of its water utility functions as defined in Title 57 RCW beginning on the 
Effective Date of this Ordinance. 
 
 B. Maintenance of Facilities within Franchise Area.  The City does hereby grant to District 
the right, privilege, authority and franchise to maintain and operate its facilities located in, upon, over, 

28 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -3- 

under, along, through and across the Franchise Area.  Activities may include, but not be limited, to 
flushing, hydrant exercise and other non-contractor maintenance work.  This type of work shall be 
considered Class B work pursuant to Section 1(g). 
 
 C. Permission Required to Enter Onto Other City Property.  Nothing contained in this 
Ordinance is to be construed as granting permission to District to go upon any other public place other 
than those types of public places specifically designated as the Franchise Area in this Ordinance.  
Permission to go upon any other property owned or controlled by the City must be sought on a case-by-
case basis from the City. 
 
 D. Compliance with Laws and Regulations.  At all times during the term of this Franchise, 
District shall fully comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 
 
 E. Exclusive Operation of Water System.  The City hereby grants the District the exclusive 
right to operate a water system. 
 
 Section 3.  Non-interference of Facilities. 
 

A. District's Facilities shall be located, relocated and maintained within the Franchise Area 
so as not to unreasonably interfere with the free and safe passage of pedestrian and vehicular traffic and 
ingress or egress to or from the abutting property and in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington.  Nothing herein shall preclude District from effecting temporary road closures as reasonably 
necessary during construction or maintenance of its Facilities provided District receives prior City 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 
 B. Whenever it is necessary for District, in the exercise of its rights under this Franchise, to 
make any excavation in the Franchise Area, District shall, upon completion of such excavation, restore 
the surface of the Franchise Area to City standards and at least to the same condition existing prior to any 
such excavation, installation, construction, relocation, maintenance or repair. Survey monuments shall not 
be removed or destroyed without the District first obtaining the required Department of Natural Resources 
(DNR) permit in accordance with RCW 58.09.130 and WAC 332-120-030. All survey monuments, which 
have been distributed or displaced by such work, shall be restored pursuant to all federal, state and local 
standards and specifications. District agrees to promptly complete all restoration work and to promptly 
repair any damage caused by such work at its sole expense.  
 
If it is determined that the District has failed to restore the right-of-way in accordance with this Section, 
the City shall provide the District with written notice, which shall include a description of actions the City 
believes necessary to restore the right-of-way. If the right-of-way is not restored in accordance with the 
City's notice within fifteen (15) days of that notice, or such longer period as may be specified in the 
notice, the City, or its authorized agent, may restore the right-of-way and District shall be responsible for 
all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the City in restoring the right-of-way in accordance with 
this Section. The rights granted to the City under this Section shall be in addition to those otherwise 
provided by this Franchise.  
 
 Section 4.  Relocation of Facilities. 
 
 A. Whenever the City causes the grading or widening of the Franchise Area or undertakes 
construction of storm drainage lines, lighting, signalization, sidewalk improvement, pedestrian amenities, 
or other public street improvements (for purposes other than those described in Section 4(B) below) and 
such project requires the relocation of District's then existing Facilities within the Franchise Area, the 
City shall: 

29 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -4- 

 
(1) Pursuant to RCW 35.21.905, or as amended, consult with District in the 

predesign phase of any such project in order to coordinate the project's design 
with District Facilities within such project's area; and 
 

(2) Provide District, at least one hundred eighty (180)  days prior to the 
commencement of such project, written notice that a project is expected to 
require relocation; and 

 
(3) Provide District with reasonably accurate and specific plans and specifications 

for such grading, widening, or construction and a proposed new location within 
the Franchise Area for District's Facilities. 

 
(4) Provide information to the District regarding street overlay projects for the 

opportunity to adjust valves located or to adjust valves that are deemed a traffic 
issue by the City.   Valve adjustment is considered Class B work and a permit is 
not normally required, unless the project is part of a larger road repair or 
construction job.  The permit will be obtained by the entity serving as the lead 
agency for the project.  

 
(5) Enter an Interlocal Agreement with the District for the coordination and 

allocation of costs of work accomplished through competitive bidding when it is 
deemed efficient and cost effective for citizens and ratepayers of the two 
municipalities to complete construction work under one contract. 

 
After receipt of such notice and such plans and specifications, District shall relocate such Facilities within 
the Franchise Area so as to accommodate such street and utility improvement project; provided, however, 
District may, after receipt of written notice requesting a relocation of its Facilities, submit to the City 
written alternatives to such relocations.  The City shall within a reasonable time evaluate such alternatives 
and advise District in writing whether one or more of the alternatives is suitable to accommodate work 
that would otherwise necessitate relocation of the Facilities.  If so requested by the City, District shall 
submit such additional information as is reasonably necessary to assist the City in making such 
evaluation.  The City shall give each alternative full and fair consideration.  In the event the City 
ultimately reasonably determines that there is no other reasonable or feasible alternative, then District 
shall relocate its Facilities as otherwise provided in this Section 4.  The City shall cooperate with District 
to designate a substitute location for its Facilities within the Franchise Area.  City will establish a date by 
which Facilities will be relocated, which date will be not less than one hundred twenty (120) days after 
written notice to District as to the facility to be relocated.  District must finish relocation of each such 
Facility by the date so established.  The cost of relocating such Facilities existing within the Franchise 
Area shall be paid as follows: 
 

(I) if the relocation occurs within six (6) years after District initially constructed 
such Facility, then the relocation shall be at the City’s sole cost, except as 
otherwise provided below relating to phased projects; 

(II) if the relocation occurs more than six (6) years but within ten (10) years after 
District initially constructed such Facility, then the City shall pay fifty percent 
(50%) of the cost of such relocation and District shall pay the remaining fifty 
percent (50%); and  

(III) if the relocation occurs more than ten (10) years after District initially 
constructed such Facility, then the relocation shall be at District's sole cost. 

30 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -5- 

(IV) For the purpose of planning, District and the City shall provide each other with a 
copy of their respective current adopted Capital Improvement Plan annually and 
upon request by the other party. 

 
The City and District agree that phased projects require special treatment in order to avoid potential 
inequities in the assignment of relocation costs when Facilities installed as part of a planned phased 
project need to be relocated within the 6-year period described in subparagraph (I) above.  In situations 
where a subsequent phase of a project requires a modification to Facilities constructed during an earlier 
phase of the same project within the referenced 6-year period, the parties agree that the City shall not be 
responsible for relocation costs associated with modifications to, or replacements of, the first forty (40) 
feet of water pipe (i.e., two lengths of standard length pipe) that were installed in an earlier phase of the 
project.  The City and District acknowledge that this special rule relating to phased projects will help 
facilitate the efficient planning and implementation of phased projects. 
 
 B. Whenever any person or entity, other than the City, requires the relocation of District's 
Facilities to accommodate the work of such person or entity within the Franchise Area, or whenever the 
City requires the relocation of District's Facilities within the Franchise Area for the benefit of any person 
or entity other than the City, then District shall have the right as a condition of such relocation to require 
such person or entity to: 
 

(1) make payment to District at a time and upon terms acceptable to District for any and 
all costs and expense incurred by District in the relocation of District's Facilities; and 

 
(2) protect, defend, indemnify and save District harmless from any and all claims and 

demands made against it on account of injury or damage to the person or property of 
another arising out of or in conjunction with the relocation of District's Facilities, to 
the extent such injury or damage is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of 
the person or entity requesting the relocation of District's Facilities or other 
negligence or willful misconduct of the agents, servants or employees of the person 
or entity requesting the relocation of District's Facilities. 

 
 C. This Section 4 shall govern all relocations of District's Facilities required in accordance 
with this Franchise.  Any cost or expense in connection with the location or relocation of any Facilities 
existing under benefit of easement or other rights not in the Franchise Area shall be borne by the City, 
provided the City obtains the District's prior consent to such location or relocation.   
 
 D. District recognizes the need for the City to maintain adequate width for installation and 
maintenance of City owned utilities such as, but not limited to, sanitary sewer, water, storm drainage and 
telecommunication facilities.  Thus, the City reserves the right to maintain reasonable clear zones within 
the public right-of-way for installation and maintenance of said utilities.  The clear zones for each right-
of-way segment shall be noted and conditioned with the issuance of each right-of-way permit.  If 
adequate clear zones are unable to be achieved on a particular right-of-way, District shall locate in an 
alternate right-of-way, obtain easements from private property owners, or propose alternate construction 
methods, which maintain and/or enhance the existing clear zones. 
 

E. For the purpose of this Section 4, a project or improvement is considered to be caused by 
the City (as described in 4(A) above) if it is permitted by the City and either of the following conditions 
exist: 

 
(1) the City is lead agency for the project or improvement, and 

31 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -6- 

(2) the City is responsible for over 50% of the overall costs of said improvement or 
project, which 50%, if applicable, includes any grant money received from another 
entity for the project.  

 Section 5.  Planning Coordination. 

 A. Growth Management. The parties agree to participate in the development of, and 
reasonable updates to, the other party's planning documents as follows:  

  1. For District's service area within the City limits, District will participate in a 
cooperative effort with the City to develop a Comprehensive Plan Utilities Element that meets the 
requirements described in RCW 36.70A.070(4).  

  2. District will participate in a cooperative effort with the City to ensure that the 
Utilities Element of City's Comprehensive Plan is accurate as it relates to District's operations and is 
updated to ensure continued relevance at reasonable intervals.  

  3. District shall submit information related to the general location, proposed 
location, and capacity of all existing and proposed Facilities within the City as requested by the City 
within a reasonable time, not exceeding sixty (60) days from receipt of a written request for such 
information, provided that such information is in the District's possession, or can be reasonably developed 
from the information in the District's possession.  

  4. The City will provide information relevant to the District's operations within a 
reasonable period of written request to assist the District in the development or update of its 
Comprehensive Water Plan, provided that such information is in the City's possession, or can be 
reasonably developed from the information in the City's possession. 

 B. System Development Information. District and City shall each assign a representative 
whose responsibility shall be to coordinate planning for CIP projects including those that involve 
undergrounding. At a minimum, such coordination shall include:  

  1. By February 1st of each year, District shall provide the City with a schedule of its 
planned capital improvements which may affect the right-of-way for that year.  

  2. By February 1st of each year, City shall provide the District with a schedule of its 
planned capital improvements which may affect the right-of-way for that year including but not limited to 
street overlays and repairs, storm drainage improvements and construction, and all other right-of-way 
activities that could affect District capital improvements and infrastructure.  

  3. District shall meet with the City, and other franchisees and users of the right-of-
way, as necessary, to schedule and coordinate construction activities.  

  4. All construction locations, activities, and schedules shall be coordinated to 
minimize public inconvenience, disruption or damages.  

  5. The City and the District agree to cooperate in the planning and implementation 
of emergency operations response procedures.  

  6. Without charge to either party, both parties agree to provide each other with as-
built plans, maps and records that show the vertical and horizontal location of its facilities within right-of-

32 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -7- 

way, measured from the center line of the right-of-way, using a minimum scale of one inch equals one 
hundred feet (1"=100'). Maps shall be provided in Geographical Information System (GIS) or other 
digital electronic format used by the City or the District, and upon request, in hard copy plan form used 
by City or District.  

 Section 6.  Indemnification. 
 
 A. District shall indemnify, defend and hold the City, its agents, officers, employees, 
volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liability, loss, cost, 
damage or expense of any nature whatsoever, including all costs and attorney's fees, made against them 
on account of injury, sickness, death or damage to persons or property which is caused by or arises out of, 
in whole or in part, the willful, tortious or negligent acts, failures and/or omissions of District or its 
agents, servants, employees, contractors, subcontractors or assigns in the construction, operation or 
maintenance of its Facilities or in exercising the rights granted District in this Franchise; provided, 
however, such indemnification shall not extend to injury or damage to the extent caused by the negligence 
or willful misconduct of the City, its agents, officers, employees, volunteers or assigns; provided further, 
this indemnity provision shall not be construed to be a waiver of any legal obligation or duty District may 
have to charge the City and any legal obligation or duty the City may have to pay for the cost of fire 
hydrants and related fire suppression services and facilities provided by District within the Franchise 
Area, nor shall this indemnity provision be construed to be a waiver of any legal obligation or duty 
District may have to charge the City for any services District may provide the City which are determined 
in the future to be a governmental function which the City should provide or pay for. 
 
 B. City shall indemnify, defend and hold the District, its agents, officers, employees, 
volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liability, loss, cost, 
damage or expense of any nature whatsoever, including all costs and attorney's fees, made against them 
on account of injury, sickness, death or damage to persons or property which is caused by or arises out of, 
in whole or in part, the willful, tortious or negligent acts, failures and/or omissions of City or its agents, 
servants, employees, contractors, subcontractors or assigns in the City's performance, administration and 
operation of this Franchise or in exercising the rights granted City in this Franchise;  provided, however, 
such indemnification shall not extend to injury or damage to the extent caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the District, its agents, officers, employees, volunteers or assigns. 
 
 C. In the event any such claim or demand be presented to or filed with the District or the 
City arising out of or relating to the acts or omissions in whole or in part to the other party, the party shall 
promptly notify the other party thereof, and the party shall have the right, at its election and at its sole cost 
and expense, to settle and compromise such claim or demand. 
 
 D. City hereby releases and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the District, its agents, 
officers, employees, volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, 
judgments, awards or liability to any person arising from District's compliance with this Franchise. 
 
 E. City hereby releases and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the District, its agents, 
officers, employees, volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, 
judgments, awards or liability to any person arising from City's decision to issue development permits 
based on accurate information on fire flow and water availability provided by District or the City's 
enforcement of the International Fire Code. 
 
 F. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Franchise is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to 
property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of City and District, their officers, 

33 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -8- 

employees and agents, District's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of District's negligence. It is 
further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
parties' waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this 
indemnification.  
 
 Section 7.  Default.  If District shall fail to comply with any of the provisions of this Franchise, 
unless otherwise provided for herein, the City may serve upon District a written order to so comply within 
thirty (30) days from the date such order is received by District.  If District is not in compliance with this 
Franchise after expiration of said thirty (30) day period, the City may act to remedy the violation and may 
charge the costs and expenses of such action to District.  The City may act without the thirty (30) day 
notice in case of an emergency.  The City may in addition, by ordinance adopted no sooner than five (5) 
days after notice of the City Council hearing (at which District will have an opportunity to be heard) on 
the impending ordinance is given to District, declare an immediate forfeiture of this Franchise, provided, 
however, if any material failure to comply with this Franchise by District cannot be corrected with due 
diligence within said thirty (30) day period (District's obligation to comply and to proceed with due 
diligence being subject to unavoidable delays and events beyond its control, in which case the time within 
which District may so comply shall be extended for such time as may be reasonably necessary and so 
long as District commences promptly and diligently to effect such compliance), provided good faith 
dispute does not exist concerning such compliance. 
 
In addition to other remedies provided herein, if District is not in compliance with requirements of the 
Franchise, and if a good faith dispute does not exist concerning such compliance, the City may place a 
moratorium on issuance of pending District right-of-way use permits until compliance is achieved. 
 
 Section 8.  Non-exclusive Franchise.  This Franchise is not and shall not be deemed to be an 
exclusive Franchise.  This Franchise shall not in any manner prohibit the City from granting other and 
further franchises over, upon, and along the Franchise Area, which do not interfere with District's rights 
under this Franchise.  This Franchise shall not prohibit or prevent the City from using the Franchise Area 
or affect the jurisdiction of the City over the same or any part thereof. 
 
 Section 9.  Franchise Term.  Subject to the provisions of Section 10 and 11 below, this Franchise 
is and shall remain in full force and effect from its Effective Date as defined in Section 26 herein until 
November 30, 2021, and on November 30 every ten (10) years thereafter, the term shall automatically be 
extended for an additional ten (10) years, unless either District or the City gives the other party written 
notice of non-renewal prior to any such renewal date, in which case this Franchise shall terminate ten (10) 
years after such renewal date; however, District shall have no rights under this Franchise nor shall District 
be bound by the terms and conditions of this Franchise unless District shall, within thirty (30) days after 
the passage date of the Ordinance referred to in Section 28 herein, file with the City its written acceptance 
of this Franchise, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney. 
 
 Section 10.  Compliance with Codes and Regulations. 
 
 A. The rights, privileges and authority herein granted are subject to and governed by this 
ordinance and all other applicable City ordinances and codes, as they now exist or may hereafter be 
amended, provided the City shall not unreasonably affect or modify any portion of this Franchise without 
District's written approval.  Nothing in this ordinance limits the City's lawful power to exercise its police 
power to protect the safety and welfare of the general public.  Any location, relocation, erection or 
excavation by District shall be performed by District in accordance with applicable federal, state and city 
rules and regulations, including the City Public Works Policies and Pre-approved Plans, and any required 
permits, licenses or regulatory fees, and applicable safety standards then in effect or any Memorandum of 
Understanding with District. 

34 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -9- 

 
 B. In the event that any territory served by District is annexed to the City after the effective 
date of this Franchise, this franchise agreement shall be deemed to be the new agreement required to be 
granted to a franchisee in annexed territory by RCW 35A.14.900 for whatever period of time is then 
required under that statute or the remaining time left under this franchise agreement for the Franchise 
Area, whichever is longer.  Such territory shall then be governed by the terms and conditions contained 
herein upon the effective date of such annexation. 
 
 Section 11.  Location of Facilities and Equipment.  With the exception of components that are 
traditionally installed above ground such as fire hydrants, blow-offs, vault lids, risers, manhole covers, 
generators, electrical control panels, power meters, telephone connections,  and utility markers, all 
Facilities and equipment to be installed within the Franchise Area shall be installed underground; 
provided, however, that such Facilities may be installed above ground if so authorized by the City, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, consistent with the provisions 
of the City's Land Use Code and applicable development pre-approved plans. 
 
 Section 12.  Record of Installations and Service.  With respect to excavations by District and the 
City within the Franchise Area, District and the City shall each comply with their respective obligations 
pursuant to Chapter 19.122 RCW, and as such statute may be modified and amended, and any other 
applicable state law. 
 
Upon written request of the City, District shall provide the City with the most recent update available of 
any plan of potential improvements to its Facilities within the Franchise Area; provided, however, any 
such plan so submitted shall only be for informational purposes within the Franchise Area, nor shall such 
plan be construed as a proposal to undertake any specific improvements within the Franchise Area. 
 
Upon written request of District, the City shall provide District with the most recent update available of 
any plan of potential improvements to its Facilities located within the Franchise Area; provided, however, 
any such plan so submitted shall only be for informational purposes within the Franchise Area, nor shall 
such plan be construed as a proposal to undertake any specific improvements within the Franchise Area. 
 
As-built drawings of the precise location of any Facilities placed by District in any street, alley, avenue, 
highway, easement, etc., shall be made available to the City within ten (10) working days of request. 
 
 Section 13.  Shared Use of Excavations.  District and the City shall exercise best efforts to 
coordinate construction work either may undertake within the Franchise Area so as to promote the orderly 
and expeditious performance and completion of such work as a whole.  Such efforts shall include, at a 
minimum, reasonable and diligent efforts to keep the other party and other utilities within the Franchise 
Areas informed of its intent to undertake such construction work.  District and the City shall further 
exercise best efforts to minimize any delay or hindrance to any construction work undertaken by 
themselves or other utilities within the Franchise Area. 
 
If at any time, or from time to time, either District, the City, or another franchisee, shall cause excavations 
to be made within the Franchise Area, the party causing such excavation to be made shall afford the 
others, upon receipt of a written request to do so, an opportunity to use such excavation, provided that: 
 

 (a) no statutes, laws, regulations or ordinances prohibit or restrict the proximity of 
other utilities or facilities to District's Facilities installed or to be installed within the area to be 
excavated;  

 

35 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -10- 

 (b) such joint use shall not unreasonably delay the work of the party causing the 
excavation to be made; 
 
 (c) such joint use shall be arranged and accomplished on terms and conditions 
satisfactory to both parties.  The parties shall each cooperate with other utilities in the Franchise 
Area to minimize hindrance or delay in construction. 

 
The City reserves the right to not allow open trenching for five (5) years following a street overlay or 
improvement project.  District shall be given written notice at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to 
the commencement of the project.  Required trenching due to an emergency will not be subject to five (5) 
year street trenching moratoriums. 
 
The City reserves the right to require District to joint trench with other facilities if both parties are 
anticipating trenching within the same portion of the Franchise Area and provided that the terms of (a), 
(b) and (c) above are met. 
 
 Section 14.  Insurance. District shall maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this 
Franchise, a minimum of One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00) liability insurance for property damage 
and bodily injury. 
 
The City shall be named as an additional insured on any policy of liability insurance obtained by District 
for the purpose of complying with the requirements of this Section. 
 
 Section 15.  Vacation of Franchise Area. If the City determines to vacate any right-of-way which 
is part of the Franchise Area where District Facilities are located or maintained, any ordinance vacating 
such right-of-way shall provide and condition such vacation on District obtaining at no cost to District a 
perpetual easement in such vacated right-of-way for the construction, operation, maintenance, repair and 
replacement of its facilities located and to be located in such vacated right-of-way. 
 
 Section 16.  Assignment.  All of the provisions, conditions, and requirements herein contained 
shall be binding upon District, and no right, privilege, license or authorization granted to District 
hereunder may be assigned or otherwise transferred without the prior written authorization and approval 
of the City, which the City may not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay, provided that a merger or 
consolidation of District with or into another Title 57 RCW water-sewer district shall not be considered 
an assignment for the purposes of this provision and shall not be subject to the City's approval. 
 
 Section 17.  Notice.  Unless applicable law requires a different method of giving notice, any and 
all notices, demands or other communications required or desired to be given hereunder by any party 
(collectively, "notices") shall be in writing and shall be validly given or made to another party if delivered 
either personally or by Federal Express or other overnight delivery service of recognized standing, or if 
deposited in the United States Mail, certified, registered, or express mail with postage prepaid, or if sent 
by facsimile transmission with electronic confirmation.  If such notice is personally delivered, it shall be 
conclusively deemed given at the time of such delivery.  If such notice is delivered by Federal Express or 
other overnight delivery service of recognized standing, it shall be deemed given one (1) business day 
after the deposit thereof with such delivery service.  If such notice is mailed as provided herein, such shall 
be deemed given three (3) business days after the deposit thereof in the United States Mail.  If such notice 
is sent by facsimile transmission, it shall be deemed given at the time of the sender's receipt of electronic 
confirmation.  Each such notice shall be deemed given only if properly addressed to the party to whom 
such notice is to be given as follows: 
 

36 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -11- 

To City: City Clerk 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA  98042 
253-638-1110 
 

To District : 
 
 
 
 
 
With copy to: 
 

General Manager 
Covington Water District 
18631 SE 300th Place 
Covington, WA  98042 
253-631-0565 
 
General Counsel 
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, PS 
Symetra Financial Center 
Suite 1900 
777 - 108th Avenue N.E. 
Bellevue, WA 98009 

 
Any party hereto may change its address for the purpose of receiving notices as herein provided by a 
written notice given in the manner aforesaid to the other party hereto. 
 
 Section 18.  Severability.  If any term, provision, condition or portion of this Franchise shall be 
held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Franchise, 
which shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
 Section 19.  Non-Waiver.  The failure of either party to enforce any breach or violation by the 
other party or any provision of this Franchise shall not be deemed to be a waiver or a continuing waiver 
by the non-breaching party of any subsequent breach or violation of the same or any other provision of 
this Franchise.  
 
 Section 20.  Alternate Dispute Resolution.  If the parties are unable to resolve disputes arising 
from the terms of this Franchise, prior to resorting to a court of competent jurisdiction, the parties shall 
submit the dispute to a non-binding alternate dispute resolution process agreed to by the parties. Unless 
otherwise agreed upon between the parties or determined herein, the cost of that process shall be shared 
equally. 
 
 Section 21.  Governing Law/Venue.  This Franchise shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Washington. Any suit to enforce or relating to this Agreement shall only be filed in King County Superior 
Court, King County, Washington. 
 
 Section 22. Entire Agreement.  This Franchise constitutes the entire understanding and agreement 
between the parties as to the subject matter herein and no other agreements or understandings, written or 
otherwise, shall be binding upon the parties upon execution and acceptance hereof.  
 
 Section 23.  Amendment.  This Franchise may be amended only by written instrument, signed by 
both parties, which specifically states that it is an amendment to this Franchise, and is approved and 
executed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, this Franchise (including, without limitation, Section 6 above) shall govern and supersede and 
shall not be changed, modified, deleted, added to, supplemented or otherwise amended by any permit, 
approval, license, agreement or other document required by or obtained from the City in conjunction with 

37 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -12- 

the exercise (or failure to exercise) by District of any and all rights, benefits, privileges, obligations, or 
duties in and under this Franchise, unless such permit, approval, license, agreement or document 
specifically: 
 

 (a) references this Franchise; and 
 

 (b) states that it supersedes this Franchise to the extent it contains terms and 
conditions which change, modify, delete, add to, supplement or otherwise amend the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise. 

 
In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Franchise and the provisions 
of any such permit, approval, license, agreement or other document that does not comply with subsections 
(a) and (b) referenced immediately above, the provisions of this Franchise shall control. 
  
 Section 24.  Directions to City Clerk. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to forward 
certified copies of this ordinance to the District as set forth in this ordinance. District shall have thirty (30) 
days from the receipt of the certified copy of this ordinance to accept in writing the terms of the Franchise 
granted to the District by this ordinance.  
 
 Section 25.  District Acceptance of Franchise. District shall have no rights under this Franchise 
nor shall District be bound by the terms and conditions of this Franchise unless District shall, within thirty 
(30) days after the effective date of the ordinance, file with the City its written acceptance of this 
Franchise. 
 
 Section 26.  Effective Date. This ordinance, being an exercise of a power specifically delegated to 
the City legislative body, is not subject to referendum, and shall take effect five (5) days after passage and 
publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title ("Effective Date").  
 
 Section 27.  Superseding Clause. This ordinance supersedes any and all other franchise 
agreements, ordinances, and/or resolutions between the City and District.  

 
 Passed by the City Council on the 27th day of September, 2011. 

 
 
_______________________ 
Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
PUBLISHED:  09-30-2011 
EFFECTIVE:   10-05-2011 

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney

38 of 79



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -13- 

UNCONDITIONAL ACCEPTANCE OF CITY FRANCHISE 

I, the undersigned official of Covington Water District, am authorized to bind Covington Water District 
and to unconditionally accept the terms and conditions of the foregoing Franchise (Ordinance No. 
__________), which are hereby accepted by Covington Water District.  

I certify that this Franchise and all terms and conditions thereof are accepted without qualification or 
reservation. 

DATED this ______ day of ___________________________, 2011. 

By:_____________________________________ 

Name: __________________________________ 

Title: ___________________________________ 

 

Witness: ________________________________ 

Name: __________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

39 of 79



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 27, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING WITH KING COUNTY FOR COORDINATED POLICY 
AND DECISION MAKING DURING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Memorandum of Understanding for Coordinated Policy and Decision Making During an 

Emergency 
 
PREPARED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is a collaborative, non-binding, inclusive 
agreement. 

 
• It provides a framework for county, city and tribal leadership to coordinate policy 

decision-making in the event of an emergency affecting their jurisdiction, including: 
 

o Formalized procedures for any signatory jurisdiction to initiate a conference call 
when an incident is imminent or a regional response is expected. 

o Allowing for coordination between any number of signatory jurisdictions 
(coordination with the King County Office of Emergency Management is always 
available, but NOT required). 

o Organizational options complement the county’s Regional Disaster Plan and 
reflect the National Incident Management System (NIMS) framework and 
include: (1) Incident Command or Unified Command, (2) a Multiagency 
Coordination System (MAC), and/or (3) Incident Management Team. 

o The agreement also allows for the determination if a Joint Information Center 
(JIC) or Joint Information System (JIS) is needed. 

• This MOU builds on regional collaboration that began after 9/11 and was accelerated by 
the situation with Howard Hanson Dam. 
 

• The MOU is voluntary and non-binding and does not impinge on local authority to act.  It 
is not prescriptive and does not require formal adoption. 

 
• The MOU is a living document; any jurisdiction may join at any time.  

 
• This MOU is an important next step in our cooperative efforts, as we build a common 

framework for making life-saving decisions during an emergency.   

40 of 79



 
Regional planning, coordination and joint decision-making are all critical elements in building 
communities that are strong and resilient.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to sign the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
NONE 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the Mayor to sign the Memorandum of Understanding 
with King County for Coordinated Policy and Decision Making during an 
Emergency. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney 
 

41 of 79



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
FOR  

COORDINATED POLICY AND DECISION MAKING 
DURING AN EMERGENCY 

 

 

1 

This non-binding Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the signatory political 
subdivision, or signatory Indian tribe, with territory in geographic King County (hereinafter 
referred to as "Party") and all other signatory Parties. 
 
Background 
 
The political subdivisions, and Indian tribes, with territory in geographic King County are 
vulnerable to numerous hazards, including earthquakes, flooding, pandemics, and terrorism.  An 
emergency caused by a hazard could occur at any time with little or no warning; cause numerous 
casualties, fatalities, displaced persons, property loss, damage to the environment, and disruption 
of essential public services; and require prolonged incident management operations and support 
activities.   
 
Purpose and Scope 
 
This MOU provides a framework for two or more Parties to coordinate policy decision making 
in the event they are affected by an emergency.   
 
Each Party is authorized to perform emergency management functions and is responsible for 
emergency response and recovery within its jurisdiction.  Each Party anticipates that, in the event 
it is affected by an emergency, it will consider a variety of policy decisions related to 
implementation of emergency management measures and participation in a regional approach to 
incident management with one or more other Parties.  Each Party intends to make and implement 
policy decisions in a coordinated manner with other affected Parties during emergency response 
and recovery activities.     
 
Protocol for First Conference Call 
 
Any Party may initiate a conference call with one or more other Parties upon determining that 
emergency management measures may need to be implemented or that a regional approach to 
incident management may need to be considered.  A Party may initiate a conference call by 
requesting the King County Duty Officer to schedule the call and notify other Parties.  The 
initiating Party will identify the other Parties to be notified of the call.  Additionally, the 
initiating Party may identify non-Party entities to be notified of the call. 
 
The Party that initiated the conference call will facilitate the discussion.  The Parties anticipate 
that in the initial conference call they may discuss: 

 
• Current information about the situation; 
 
• Emergency management measures under immediate consideration and regional 

considerations regarding implementation of emergency management measures; 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

42 of 79



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
FOR  

COORDINATED POLICY AND DECISION MAKING 
DURING AN EMERGENCY 

 

 

2 

• Review of authorities and/or support outlined in the Regional Disaster Plan (RDP) and/or 
Omnibus Legal and Financial Agreement; 

 
• Establishment of a Joint Information Center/Joint Information System; 
 
• Schedule for a subsequent conference call or meeting at a specified location and 

notification to other Parties and non-Party entities which are not on the call. 
 
Ongoing Coordination 
 
The initial conference call described in this MOU is intended to be the first step in ongoing 
coordination. The structure for ongoing coordination will depend on the incident. 
 
Other Provisions 
 
This MOU is not binding and imposes no enforceable obligations upon the Parties, nor is it 
intended to restrict the authority of any Party to act independently.  If a situation arises where 
Parties cannot reach a decision by consensus, any Party may make its own decision within its 
jurisdiction.  
 
This MOU may be modified by written agreement of the Parties. 
 
This MOU is effective upon signature by any two Parties.  After the first two signatures, the 
MOU is effective as to any other Party upon that Party’s signature.  The MOU may be signed in 
counterparts and deemed one integrated MOU.    
 
This MOU shall remain in effect until September 1, 2012, and shall be automatically renewed on 
September 1 of each successive year.  Any Party may terminate its participation in this 
agreement upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other Parties.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43 of 79



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
FOR  

COORDINATED POLICY AND DECISION MAKING 
DURING AN EMERGENCY 

 

 

3 

SIGNATURE PAGE 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________                                 ______________________ 
The Honorable Margaret Harto                        Date 
Mayor, City of Covington 

                                                   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This MOU is available for signature by any political subdivision, or Indian tribe, with territory in 
geographic King County. 

44 of 79



 Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 27, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR 

SERVICES WITH NORTHWEST STORMWATER MANAGEMENT LLC FOR 
THE JOINT COVINGTON/MAPLE VALLEY STORM SEWER CLEANING 
CONTRACT. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Agreement for Services for Storm Sewer Cleaning 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The Public Works Department solicited bids from all the storm sewer cleaning companies 
identified on the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) Small Works Roster.  Five 
companies provided complete bids for the service.  The lowest bid (Northwest Stormwater 
Management) is listed below. 
 
Schedule A:  City of Covington 
 

Item No. Items of Work Bid Qty Units Unit Prices Total Amount 
A1 Catch Basins - Type I 2,278 Each 12.00 27,336.00 
A2 Catch Basins - Type II 616 Each 45.00 27,720.00 
A3 Storm Filters & Vaults 180 Each 75.00 13,500.00 
A4 Pre-Settling Tanks 13 Each 1,250.00 16,250.00 
A5 Pipe Cleaning 1 Hour 145.00 N/A 
A6 Emergency Response 1 Hour 145.00 N/A 

Grand Total 84,806.00 
 
Schedule B:  City of Maple Valley 
 

Item No. Items of Work Bid Qty Units Unit Prices Total Amount 
B1 Catch Basins - Type I 2,917 Each 12.00 35,004.00 
B2 Catch Basins - Type II 1,265 Each 45.00 56,925.00 
B3 Storm Filters & Vaults 272 Each 80.00 21,760.00 
B4 Stormwater Vaults 20 Each 1,200.00 24,000.00 
B5 Pipe Cleaning 1 Hour 145.00 N/A 
B6 Emergency Response 1 Hour 145.00 N/A 

Grand Total 137,689.00 

      Schedule A and Schedule B Grand Total 222,495.00 
 

45 of 79



Staff requests the Covington City Council to award the Storm Cleaning Agreement to the lowest, 
most qualified bidder, Northwest Stormwater Management, in the amount of $222,495.00 to 
clean the storm systems of Covington and Maple Valley as outlined in the agreement.  
$222,495.00 is the contract amount for both Covington and Maple Valley.  The City of 
Covington’s portion of this agreement is $84,806.00 (for all three years).  The City of Maple 
Valley’s portion of this agreement is $137,689.00 (for all three years).  
 
Remaining dollars budgeted for storm sewer cleaning in the 2012 City of Covington budget will 
be used for pipe cleaning and emergency response within the contract.  
 
The City of Covington will administer this contract for Covington as well as Maple Valley as 
allowed in the ILA between both cities.  Costs associated with this contract for work done in the 
City of Maple Valley will be passed on to the City of Maple Valley.  Reimbursement requests 
will be provided monthly to the City of Maple Valley for the storm sewer cleaning done within 
their borders as well as administrative costs associated with overseeing this contract. 
 
Each City has a different schedule and frequency for storm sewer cleaning within their individual 
City which is outlined in the contract documents.  This is a three year contract. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Reject all bids and re-advertise the project for competitive bids later.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Agreement for Service with Northwest Stormwater Management for Storm Sewer Cleaning 
will cost $222,495.00, not including discretionary items (A5, A6, B5, B6).  Covington expects to 
recover $137,689.00 (not including any discretionary items) through the course of this 
agreement.  
 
Covington’s 2011 budgeted amount for this activity is $58,500 (Surface Water Management 
Fund) of which there is currently $55,134.75 remaining as of September 15, 2011. 
 
Covington’s 2012 proposed budget for this activity will remain at $58,500 (for work done in 
Covington done under this contract).  The remaining dollars budgeted for storm sewer cleaning 
in the proposed 2012 budget will be used to establish a storm sewer pipe cleaning program that 
budget has not allowed in the past.  This contract allows Covington to do more than we have in 
the past with the same amount of money.  Emergency response is also included in this contract.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance             Resolution      X      Motion            Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an Agreement for 
Services with Northwest Stormwater Management LLC for Storm Sewer 
Cleaning. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

46 of 79



ATTACHMENT 1 

1 

 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
 
 
Between:  City of Covington and Northwest Stormwater Management LLC 
Project:  Storm Sewer Cleaning 
Commencing: October 1, 2011 
Terminating:  September 30, 2014 
Amount:  Not to Exceed $342,500 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES (“Agreement”) is entered into this ___ day of 
September, 2011, by and between the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal 
corporation, and Northwest Stormwater Management LLC. (“Contractor”), a limited liability 
company. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. The City, in partnership with the City of Maple Valley (“Maple Valley”), seeks 
the temporary services of a skilled independent contractor capable of working without 
direct supervision to perform storm sewer cleaning services on behalf of the citizens of 
Covington and Maple Valley; and 
 
 B. The City has taken the lead administrative role of requesting bids for said 
services and has selected the Contractor to perform said services; and 
 

C. The Contractor has the requisite skill and experience necessary to provide 
said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions 
under which the Contractor will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set 
forth herein, the City and the Contractor do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby 
engage the Contractor and the Contractor does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the 
City the services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the 
Contractor shall perform the services described on both Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Services”), in a manner 
consistent with the accepted practices for similar services, performed to the City’s 
satisfaction, within the time period prescribed by the City and pursuant to the direction of 
the City Manager or his or her designee.  In performing the Services, the Contractor shall 
comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, including, without limitation, 
all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards and policies, as now existing or 
hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  To the extent 
required by law, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay no less than the prevailing 

47 of 79



2 

wage rate to employees performing work under this Agreement and shall submit a 
“Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages” and an “Affidavit of Wages Paid” in 
compliance with RCW 39.12. 
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a 
period commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but 
in any event no later than September 30, 2014, unless earlier terminated under the 
provisions of this Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for additional periods of 
time upon the mutual written agreement of the City and the Contractor.  Time is of the 
essence in each and every term of this Agreement.  
 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment. 
 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the Contractor performing the 
Services, the City agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed $342,500. 
 
  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment for Services shall be made after the 
Services have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a form 
acceptable to the City within thirty (30) days of performance of the Services, and the same 
is approved by the appropriate City representative.  Services for Covington and Maple 
Valley shall be invoiced separately to the City.  Payment shall be made no later than ten 
(10) days after the City’s Council approval of the invoiced amount.   
 
  4.3 First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the 
Contractor shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification 
Number and Certification”, also known as IRS Form W-9. 
 
  4.4 Contractor Responsible for Taxes.  The Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of 
the performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Warranty.  The Contractor warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and 
experience necessary to provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed 
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited to being 
registered to do business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of Covington 
business license.  The City of Maple Valley requires a Washington State business license.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and 
accuracy, timely completion and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, 
specifications, reports and other services prepared or performed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  The Contractor shall perform its work in accordance with the requirements of 
this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of professional care, skill, diligence and 
competence as are normally exercised by other members and/or firms of the profession in 
good standing working under the same or similar conditions and circumstances and in 
similar communities as the services provided by the Contractor under this Agreement.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance and 
actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of 
the Contractor.  The City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the 
Contractor any costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the 
City, as a result of the Contractor’s failure to comply with the requirements of the 
Agreement or failure to meet the professional standard of care and skill, or both. The 
City’s approval of plans, drawings, designs, specifications, reports and other products of 

48 of 79



3 

the professional services rendered hereunder shall not in any way relieve the Contractor 
of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy thereof.  Neither the City’s review, 
approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services shall be construed to operate as 
a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement.   
 

6. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original and copies of 
records, reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or information, 
regardless of form or format, and all other materials prepared or produced by the 
Contractor in connection with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the 
project for which they were created is executed or not.  At the termination or cancellation 
of this Agreement, any and all such records or information remaining in the possession of 
the Contractor shall be delivered to the City.   
 
 7. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and 
the Contractor that the Contractor shall be an independent contractor and that the City 
shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay the Contractor sick leave, vacation pay or any 
other benefit of employment.  The Contractor shall pay all income and other taxes due.  
Industrial or any other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of 
whether such may provide a secondary or incidental benefit to the Contractor, shall not be 
deemed to convert this Agreement to an employment contract.  The Contractor will be 
solely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, sub contractors or 
representatives during the performance of this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be considered to create the relation of employer and employee or principal and 
agent between the parties hereto.  The Contractor shall have the sole judgment of the 
means, mode or manner of the actual performance of this Agreement.  The Contractor, as 
an independent Contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and 
accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
 8. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, Contractor shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Cities of Covington and Maple Valley and all of 
its officials, employees, principals and agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and 
liability of any kind, including injuries to persons or damages to property, which arise out 
of, are connected with, or are due to any errors, omissions or negligent acts of Contractor, 
its employees, agents, volunteers or representatives in performance of this Agreement; 
provided, however, that if (and only if) the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 apply to the work 
and services under this Agreement and any such damages and injuries to persons or 
property are caused by or result from the concurrent negligence of Contractor, its 
employees, agents, volunteers or representatives and the City or its employees, agents, or 
representatives, the indemnification applies only to the extent of the negligence of 
Contractor, its employees, volunteers, agents, or representatives.  In the event of any 
such claims, demands, suits, actions, and lawsuits, Contractor shall assume all costs of 
defense thereof, including administrative and legal fees incurred by the City, and of all 
resulting judgments that may be obtained against the City or any of its officers, principals, 
agents, or employees.  If resulting there from, any lien is placed upon property of the City 
or any of its officers, principals, agents, or employees, Contractor shall at once cause the 
same to be dissolved and discharged by giving bond or otherwise.  Contractor specifically 
assumes potential liability for actions brought by Contractor’s own employees against the 
City and for that purpose Contractor specifically waives, as respects the City only, any 
immunity under the Worker's Compensation Act, RCW Title 51; and Contractor 
recognizes that this waiver was the subject of mutual negotiation and specifically entered 

49 of 79



4 

into pursuant to the provision of RCW 4.24.115, if applicable. In the event either party 
incurs attorney's fees, costs or other legal expenses to enforce the provisions of this 
section against the other party, all such fees, costs and expenses shall be recoverable by 
the prevailing party. 
 
 The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.  The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of work hereunder by the 
Contractor, its agents, representatives or employees.  Contractor’s maintenance of 
insurance as required by the agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the 
Contractor to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the Cities of 
Covington’s and Maple Valley’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. The 
Contractor shall at a minimum obtain and carry the following insurance in such forms and 
with such carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City:  
 

9.1 Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts 
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington;  

 
9.2 Commercial general liability insurance covering liability arising from 

premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury and 
written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less 
than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, 
including personal injury or death, products liability and property damage.  

 
9.3 Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired 

and leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability 
not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury, including personal injury or death 
and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual 
liability coverage.   
 

The Cities of Covington and Maple Valley shall be named as additional insured on 
all such insurance policies, with the exception of workers' compensation coverage(s) if the 
Contractor participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.  The Contractor shall 
provide original certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsement, 
concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such coverage and, at City's 
request, furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of payment 
of premiums or fees of such policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 
current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. All insurance policies shall contain a clause 
of endorsement providing that they may not be terminated or materially amended during 
the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City.  If 
the Contractor's insurance policies are "claims made," the Contractor shall be required to 
maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) years from the date this 
Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion and acceptance by the City.  
The Contractor's failure to maintain such insurance policies shall be grounds for the City's 
immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

50 of 79



5 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

10. Books and Records.  The Contractor agrees to maintain books, records, and 
documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of the Services and maintain such accounting procedures and practices as 
may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all funds paid 
pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to 
inspection, review or audit by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or 
other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this Agreement. 
 
 11. Termination.   
 
  11.1 Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately, with or without cause, by the City.  The Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement upon sixty (60) days notice to the City.  In the event of termination or 
suspension, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, 
reports or other materials prepared by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
submitted to the City within five (5) days of the date of termination. 
 
  11.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and 
reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination. 
 
  11.3 This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal 
remedies it may otherwise have for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any 
provision of this Agreement.  The remedies provided in this paragraph shall be in addition 
to any other remedy the City may have at law or in equity. 
 

12. Discrimination.  In all Contractor services, programs or activities, and all 
Contractor hiring and employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, 
there shall be no discrimination by the Contractor or by the Contractor's employees, 
agents, subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, age (except 
minimum age and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status 
or the presence of any disability, including sensory, mental or physical handicaps, unless 
based upon a bona fide occupational qualification in relationship to hiring and 
employment.  This requirement shall apply, but not be limited to the following:  
employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Contractor shall 
not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or 
any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation regarding non-discrimination. 
Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement 
by the City and, in the case of the Contractor's breach, may result in ineligibility for further 
City agreements.   
 
 13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer 
any interest in this Agreement or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated 
hereunder without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
 14. Conflict of Interest.  The Contractor represents to the City that it has no 

51 of 79



6 

conflict of interest in performing any of the services described herein.  It is recognized that 
the Contractor may or will be performing services during the Term for other parties; 
provided, however that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or 
interfere with the Contractor’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the 
Contractor is asked to perform services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the 
Contractor shall immediately disclose such potential conflict to the City.  The Contractor 
agrees to resolve any actual conflicts of interest in favor of the City. 
 
 15. Non-appropriation of Funds.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated or 
allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the City will so 
notify the Contractor and shall not be obligated to make payments for services or amounts 
incurred after the end of the City’s current fiscal period.  This Agreement shall terminate 
upon the completion of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or 
expense shall accrue to the City in the event that the terms of this provision are 
effectuated. 
 
 16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of 
this Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those 
contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, 
negotiations, representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties 
hereto concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 17. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by 
writing signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 18. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of the City to 
declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare 
another breach or default. 
 
 19. Successors.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 above, this 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective 
heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 20. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed 
to be severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this 
Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be 
construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of 
this Agreement.  
 
 21. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall 
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or 
mailed, by first class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
 
  if to the Contractor, to: 
 

Northwest Stormwater Management LLC 
   Attn:  Dave Clark 
   1621 Central Avenue South, Unit #46 

52 of 79



7 

   Kent, WA  98032 
 
or to such other person or place as the Contractor shall furnish to the City in writing; and 
 

if to the City, to: 
 

   City of Covington 
   Attn:  Maintenance Supervisor 
   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to the Contractor in writing. 
 

Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, 
upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
 22. Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of 
this Agreement shall be King County, Washington. 
 
 23. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s 
reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited to 
reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the 
determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal 
proceedings, or otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall 
include all litigation, arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, 
including appeals therefrom. 
 
 24. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City 
and the Contractor contained hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
 25. Independent Counsel.  The Contractor acknowledges that the drafter of this 
Agreement is the City’s legal representative to whom the Contractor does not look to for 
any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction.  The Contractor further 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel and has 
had an opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Contractor acknowledges 
that it has consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived 
the right to do so.  There shall be no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied 
against any party hereto. 
 

26. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City 
and the Contractor represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to 
execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor or the City.  

 
 
 

53 of 79



8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the 
day and year written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Derek Matheson 
Its: City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
NORTHWEST STORMWATER MANAGEMENT LLC 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By: Dave Clark 
Its:  
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me ______________________, to me known to 
be the _________________________________________________________ of 
_____________________________________that executed the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said 
corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he/she 
was authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the 
corporate seal of said corporation. 
 

GIVEN my hand and official seal this ___ day of _________________, 2011. 
 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 
     (typed/printed name of notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington. 
My commission expires__________________ 

54 of 79



9 

EXHIBIT A1 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
WITHIN THE CITY OF COVINGTON 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide storm sewer cleaning services during this contract as 
follows.  See Covington maps and spreadsheet for more details (Exhibits A2 and A3) 
 
• Year 1 All Catch Basins – Type I and II (approximately 609 Type I and 217 Type II) 

including structures in Stormwater Retention Facilities in Maintenance Zone 
2 and Maintenance Zone 3 will be thoroughly vacuum cleaned and 
operational.  All Storm Filter Vaults (5 Vaults with 81 filters) will be cleaned 
and filters in them replaced.  
 
Filter Replacement: All structures with storm filters will be cleaned and 
filters replaced (see item 10 below).  This work shall include inspections of 
each basin, vault, or facility.  Inspection reports shall be provided to the City. 

 
• Year 2 All Catch Basins – Type I and II (approximately 750 Type I and 119 Type II) 

including structures in Stormwater Retention Facilities in Maintenance Zone 
4 will be thoroughly vacuum cleaned and operational.  All Pre-Settling Tanks 
(13) will be thoroughly washed and vacuum cleaned. 

 
• Year 3 All Catch Basins – Type I and II (approximately 819 Type I and 280 Type II) 

including structures in Stormwater Retention Facilities in Maintenance Zone 
1 will be vacuum cleaned and operational.  All Storm Filter Vaults (6 Vaults 
with 99 filters) will be cleaned and filters in them replaced. 

 
Filter Replacement:  All structures with storm filters will be cleaned and 
filters replaced (see item 10 below).  This work shall include inspections of 
each basin, vault, or facility.  Inspection reports shall be provided to the City. 

 
Contractor will perform the following items: 
 
1. Contractor will provide all necessary labor, material, and equipment to perform the 

work described herein.  Cleaning catch basins will consist of vactoring 
sediment/debris and/or water from structure.  Cleaning of vaults will consist of 
washing of interior walls and vactoring of sediment/debris and/or water from 
structure.  Vaults with filters in them are anticipated to have low sediment 
accumulations.  However, it is the Bidder’s responsibility to verify conditions prior to 
submitting a bid.  

 
2. Contractor will follow a systematic route cleaning all Type I and Type II Catch 

Basins within the identified area, including those in Stormwater Retention Facilities 
and Storm Filter Vaults. 

 
3. Contractor will log, on a map provided by the City, the location of Type I and Type II 

Catch Basins that have been cleaned and indicate the direction of storm water flow 
from catch basin to catch basin.  

 

55 of 79



10 

4. Once a catch basin is cleaned, contractor will mark the grate with permanent white 
paint in a manner directed by the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor. 

 
5. Contractor will assess the condition of Type I and Type II Catch Basins after 

cleaning and notify the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor if any 
deficiencies or issues are found.  

 
6. Before leaving each catch basin location, contractor will clean all catch basin 

frames and grates/lids with high-pressure water. 
 
7. Contractor will dispose of the sediment in accordance with Department of Ecology 

requirements.  The Contractor shall obtain any necessary permits or licenses 
required to perform these services.  
 

8. The Contractor’s bid item prices shall include all disposal costs associated with 
cleaning of the storm facilities called out in this contract.  This includes any testing 
requirements.  No separate payment will be made for disposal or testing of 
material.  Again, the Contractor will provide the City with copies of the waste 
disposal receipts from an approved disposal facility.  For details on pre-settling 
tanks to be cleaned, see exhibit A3, Vault Spreadsheet. 

 
9. Contractor will provide the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor monthly with 

copies of all waste disposal documents for verification of proper disposal of spoils. 
 
10. Filter Replacement:  There are approximately 94 filters that need to be replaced in 

year one of this contract in the City of Covington.  Catch Basins and Vaults 
containing filters will be thoroughly cleaned.  Existing filter media will be vacuumed 
out, removed, and new filters installed by the Contractor.  New replacement filters 
will be provided to the Contractor by the City.  The Contractor shall make 
arrangements to pick up new filters from a City facility.  The Contractor will notify 
the City 30 days prior to needing filters from the City.  The removed plastic filter 
shells shall be handled with care so that they are not damaged.  These will be 
delivered by the Contractor undamaged to a City Maintenance Facility as directed 
by the City Maintenance Supervisor.  The price for Storm Filters (per each filter) will 
include the removal and disposal of the used filter media, installation of the new 
City provided filter, cleaning of the inside of the filter vault, and delivery of the used 
filter shell to the City. 

 
11. Contractor will provide emergency response 24-hours a day upon request by the 

City.  The Contractor must be able to meet a 60 minute maximum response time in 
an emergency/after hours call out. 

 
12. Contractor will provide the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor with work 

schedules prior to work commencing. 
 
13. Contractor will provide a weekly inspection log to the City of Covington 

Maintenance Supervisor via email or fax indicating completed work.  The log will be 
provided to the Contractor by the City. 

 
14. The City of Covington shall be invoiced within 30 days of completion of work. 
 

56 of 79



SR 18

SE 256TH ST

RAMP

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 272ND ST

16
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE WAX RD

15
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 261ST ST

SE 251ST ST

156TH PL SE

17
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

160TH AVE SE

SE 267TH ST

17
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 262ND PL

SE 267TH PL

SE 270TH PL

17
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 244TH ST

16
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 265TH ST

SE 266TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

17
2N

D 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND ST

17
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

15
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 246TH ST

17
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 SE

15
1S

T 
PL

 S
E

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

16
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

16
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
5T

H 
WA

Y S
E

SE 247TH ST

SE 257TH ST

17
9T

H 
PL

 SE

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 264TH ST

170TH WAY SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH PL

17
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

17
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

159TH AVE SE

15
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 259TH PL

17
1S

T P
L S

E

16
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 249TH PL

SE 253RD PL

SE 258TH ST

SE 268TH PL

16
7T

H 
AV

E S
E

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

15
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 254TH PL

16
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 256TH PL

17
5T

H PL SE

159TH PL SE

18
1S

T P
L S

E

16
2N

D A
VE

 SE

17
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 263RD ST

SE 257TH PL

SE 254TH ST

SE 252ND PL

15
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

15
5T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 269TH PL

SE 24
8TH

 PL

SE 264TH PL

SE 265TH PL

SE 255TH PL

SE 251ST PL

15
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 255TH ST

15
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

162
ND

 PL
 SE

SE 242ND ST

16 3RD PL SE

15
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

60
TH

 P
L S

E

SE 252ND CT

16
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

16
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 264TH ST

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 261ST CT

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 251ST PL

SE 262ND PL

SE 264TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 253RD PL

16
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

SE 266TH ST

SE 262ND ST

15
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 254TH ST

SR 18

SE 260T H ST

SE 267TH PL

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 257TH ST

SE 271ST ST

166TH AVE SE

15
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 265TH ST

SE 267TH PL

163
RD

 AV
E S

E

160TH PL SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 262ND PL

SE 264TH ST

SE 269TH ST

RAMP

SE 262ND PL

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
5T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE 258TH ST

SE 252ND PL

SE 263RD PLSE 263RD PL

SE 244TH PL

SE 261ST PL

161ST PL SE

SE 257TH ST

SE 254TH PL

172ND AVE SE

SE 267TH PL

SE 268TH ST

168TH PL SE

SE 250TH PL

16
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 250TH CT

17
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

16
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 259TH CT

16
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 2 65 TH CT

SE 252ND PL

16
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 263RD PL

174TH PL SE

SE 263RD ST

166
TH PL SE

SE 266TH ST

SE 26 1ST P L

SE 251ST ST

16
7T

H  AV
E 

SE

SE 260TH ST

16
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 266TH  PL

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 272ND ST

168th PL SE

SE 270TH PL

")

")

")

")
")
")!(!(

")

!(")
!(")

")

")!A
")

")

")")

")

")

")
")!A

")") ")
")")

")
")

")
")

")
")")")

")")")
")")

!(")

") ")
")

")
")

")")")")")
!( !(")

")

!( ")!(

")!(

")")!(
!(
")

")")

") ")
!(")!(
!(

")

")

")

")
")")

")!(
")

!("")
")")

")

")")")
")

!(
")

")
")

")

")

")

")")

")")

")")
")")")")

")
!(")!(

")!(

")!( !(
")!(

")
!(

")
")

")")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")")
")

")
")!(

")!(

")")

!(

!(")

")
")

")!(")

!(

!(
")")!(

")")

!(

")
")")

")")

")!A
")

")")")

")!(")

!(!(!(") ")

!(!( !(
!( !A!(

")")

!(
!(")

")")

")
")")!(

")")
")!(

")!( !(

") ") ")")") ") ") !( !(

!(

!(
")

")!(

")
")

!(

")")

")

!A!(
!A

")

") ")
") !(

")

")

")

")

")

!(

")
") ")")

")

!(

!(

!(
")

")!(

")
!(

!(
") ")!(

")
!(!A

!(

")
!( ")

")!(

")")

")")

")")
!(

") ") ") ") ") ")

")")
")
")

")")

")
!(
!(!(

!(")

")") !(

")")

")!(

")

")

")")

")")

!(")

!(

!( ")!( !(
")

!(")

")!(

!(

!( !(
") ")

!( !(
")")

")")

!(")
!(") ")!(

")

!(

")

")

")
")

")
") ")")

")

")")

")

")

")

!(

")

") ")

")
")

")

")
")

")
!A

")

!A
")

!A

")")

")
") ")

")

")!( ")")
")

")
")")
!(

")")

")")!(")
!(

!(

")

")

")
")

!(")
")

")

")")

")

")
")")

!A
!A

")")
")")!(")") !(

!(")

!(")

")

!A")!(

!(

")

")

")")

")")")

!A

")
")
")
")

") ")

")!A

")
!(

")!A

")
!(
!(

")")

!(

!(")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")
!(")

")") ")")

")

")")

!A")")!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

")
!A

!(

")")
")

")!(

!( !( !(")!(
!(!(

")")
")

")
")")")

")
")

")")")

")

!(

")

")")")
!(

")")
")

")

") ")")

")")

")")

!(!(

")

")")

")")

")
")")")")

!(!(!(
")!(

!(
")

!(

!(")
")")

")

!(")

!(")

!(

")
") ")

") !(!(!(
!(

!(
")")")

")")")")

!(!A

!A!A")")

")
")

")")")

")!(
") !(

") ")
") !(

")
!(

!( !(

")
")

")")

")

")
")

")")!(

!(

")
")

")")
")")

!(

")")") ")")
")")
!(

!( !(

!(

") ")

")

")
") ")!(

")

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
")
")
")

")
")!(

")

!(

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")

!(
")

!(")")

")")
(

")
!(

")")

")
")

")")
!(
")!(")

")!(

!(

")

")")

")")

")")

")")

")")
")")
")
!(

")

!(

!(

")")

!(")
!(!A
!(

")") ")
")")

")

!(
!(
")")!(

")") ")

")

")")

")")

!(
!(
")")")

!( ")

")")")

")")

")")

!( ")!(
")

") ")")

!A

!(!(

")")
")!(!(

")!(!(

")")

!(!(")

")!(!(

")

")")") ")
")

")
!(")

")

")
")!(

")!(

!(

")")

")")
!(

")")!(
")")

")")

")

")")
!( ")!(

!(

!(

")
") !(

")")

")
")

")") ")

")")!(
!(

")")

")")
!(

!(

!(

")")
")!(

!(

")

")

")
")")
")!A

")") ")

")")

")")

!(

")")
")

!(")

")")

")")
!(")

")
")")")

") ")") ")

")")

")")

")
")

!(
")

!(

!A

")

")

")

") ") ") ")
")

")")!(

")") ")
")")

")")

")

")") !(

!(!(!(

")
")")

")")

")

!(")

!A

!( ")")

")
")
") ")

")")

")")

")!(
")")

!(
")")

")

")")

")")

")

")")

")")
")")")")

")

")

")")

")")
")

")")

")")
!(

")!( ")
")")

!(")
")!(

")!(

")")

")")")!(

")")

!(
!(

")")

")

")")") ")")
")

!(

")")

")")

")!(

!(

!(
!(

")
")

")!(
")

!(!A

")")

")

")")

!A")

")")

")")

")

")")

!(

")")!A ")")")

")")
")

")
") ") ") !A

!(
!A ")

")
")")")

!(")")
")

")
") ")

")")
")

(

( (

(

(
(

(

")")
((

")

((

(

")
")
")
")

( (

( (

(

((

(

(

(
(

")")

")")")

") ")

") ")")

")
( ")

")")

!(!( ") ") ") ") ")

") ")

")")

(

((

(

(

(
(

( (

(

(

")!(
")")
")")

")")

")")

( (

")

")

")

")

")

(
(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")

(

(

( (

( (

(

(

")
")

(

(

")
")

")
")

(

(

(

")
")

(

(

")
")

(

")")

")

")")

")")

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

")")

")")

")

")")
")
")

")

(

( (

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

")!(")")

( (

(( (( (

(

(

((

( (

(

(

(

(

")")

")")

")")

")")
!(

!(

!(

!(
")

") !(

( (

(

(

")

")
(

")
")")")

")

")

")

!(
")
!(!(

")!(

") ")") !( !(

!(")

")

!(
")")

!(")
")")

")")

")
")

!(!(")")")")!(")") ") ") ")")

!(")
")

")
")

")!(
") !(

")")

")")

!(

!(
")

!(
")

")

")")

")

")")

")
")

!(!(

")!(

!(
")

")!(

")!(
!(

!(

!(

")

")")

")

")

")

!(")

")
")

")

")!(

")!(

!(

!(

!(

!(")

!(

")

!( ")
")

")
")

")

!(!( !(

") ")
!(

")")

")!(")

")")")
")")

( (

!( !(

(

(
(

( (

( (

(

(

")")

")

")")

")")
")

")")")

")")

!(

")")")
")")

!(
!( ") ")")

(

(

(

( (

(

((
(

#*

#*
")")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

")

")
")

!(
!(

")!(")

")")

")")

")")

")")

")

")")

")")")")
")
")

")

")")

")")
")

")")
")
")

")
")

")
")
!(

")

")
")")

")
!( !(

") ")
!A ")

") ")

")

")

")

")

")

") ")

")") ")

")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(
( ( ( (

(
( ( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(((

(

")

")
")

")

")")

")

")")

")
")")

")

")")

")

")
")

(

(

(

")
") ")

")
")(

( (

( (

((

(

( (

(

(

")

(

!(

")")

")")

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

( (

( (

(

(

((

") ")")

")")
!(

(

!(

(

(

(

(

")

")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
((

((
(

(

(

(
(

(
(

( ( (

( (

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(((

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

( (

(

(

(

(
(
(
(

(

(((((

(((
((

(((

((

(((

(

(
(

( (

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

")!(
")

")!(
") !(

") !( !(
") ")")")

")

")")

")")

")
")
")")

")")

") ")

")")

( (

(

(
(

( (

((

!(
(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

")

(
(

(
(

( ( ( (( ( (

(((( (

(

") ") ") ")") ") ")
")

")
")

")

!(
")

((
(

")

!(
!(
!(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

((((

(

(

(

!A!(

!(

")

!(")
")

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

") !(
!(

") ") !(

!( !( !A
")

!(!(

")
")!(

")")

")
!(

")

!(

")

!(

")")

")

")")

!(

!(

!A!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

")

")

")
")
")

!(

")")

")") ")

")")

")

")")

")")

")")
")")

")
")")

")
")

")

")")

")
")

")

")
") ")

")")
!(

")")
")
")

")

")

!(

(

(

( (

( (

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(
(

!(

(
(

(

")

") !(

")

(

( (
(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

")
")")

")

")

")")

!A")")
")")")

")")

")")

")!(
!(!(

!(

")
!(")") !(

")
!(

")

")

")!(
")")

!(

")")

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!A

!(

!(

")

!(!(
!(

""
!(

!(!(

""
")
")
")

")

") ")

")

")

!(!A
(

")")")

")

!(

(

(
(

(
(

(

(

(

(

((

(

( (

(

((

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

")

")!(
!(
!(
")!(
")
!(

!(!(!(

")!(

")!(

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

!(

((
(

(

(

!A
!A
!(

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

(

")

")")

")

")

")")

""")!(
!(")

!(
!(

(
(

( (

(
(

")!(

")

")
")
")

(
(

")")

")")
")
")")

")

!(

!A")
")

") ")

")

")

")

")") ")

")

")
")

")
")
")

")

")

!(

((

(

((
(

(
(

((((

(((((

(

(((((

(

(

(( (

(

(

(

(

(

")

")

")

(

")

")

")

")

(

( ( (

((

(

(

")")

!(

")

")

!(

!(!(

")

!(

")")

")

")

!(

")

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
(

(

(

(

(

")

!(

!( !( !(

!(

")

") ")

")")
")")

!A
")

!(

")")
")")")")

")

!(!A
!(

!A !( !(

")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

!(

")

!A

")

!A
!A

!(
!(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")

") ")

!(

")

")

")

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

!(

(

(

")

!(

"
!(

")!( ")!(
")

") !(")
!(")")

")

")
") ")!(
") !(

!( !(") ")

") !( ")!(")

")

")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

")")")")

!(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

")

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")

(

(

((

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

( (

((
(
(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(
!(
!(

!(

")
")

(
(

(

(

(
(( ( ( (

((

( ( (((
(

( (

(

(

(

(((

(

(

(

( ( ((

(
(

(

(

((((((

(

(
((

(

(
(
(

(

((

((

(
((
((

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

!(

(

((

(((

(

")

!(

!(

((
(
(

( (

(

(
((

(

(

")

")

")

")")")")!A (((

(
(

( (

( (

#*#*
#*#*#*#*

#*#*
")

")")

!(

")

!A

")

(

(

(

")

!(

")
( (

((

")")
") ")

")

")

")

!(
!(

!(

")")!(!(!(

!(
")

!(
!A

")

")

")

!(!(

(

")(
(

")

")
")

")

")")

!(

!A

!(

")

")

")")

")

")")

")

!A

")

")

")

")

")

(

(

")

!(

(

!(") (

.
1 inch = 1,250 feet

City of Covington 
Drainage Map

Created By: Shawn Buck 06/13/2011

Zone 1

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

!A Control Structure

") Type 1, Public

" Stormfilter

!( Type 2, Public

Zone 1

EXHIBIT A2

57 of 79



SR 18

SE 256TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

16
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 240TH ST

SE 261ST ST

SE 251ST ST

17
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 267TH ST

19
7T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND PL

SE 267TH PL

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

19
1S

T P
L S

E

194
TH

 AV
E S

E

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

19
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 244TH ST

16
1S

T P
L S

E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 265TH ST

SE 266TH PL

SE 244TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

17
2N

D 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND ST

17
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 246TH ST

17
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 259TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

186TH PL SE

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

16
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

18
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

17
5T

H 
WA

Y S
E

SE 247TH ST

199
TH

 AV
E S

E

SE 257TH ST
17

9T
H 

PL
 SE

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

170TH WAY SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH PL

17
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

17
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE
 18

4T
H 

PL

SE 259TH PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 SE

17
1S

T P
L S

E

19
5T

H P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

16
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 249TH PL

18
4T

H P
L S

E

188TH AVE SE

SE 266TH ST

187TH AVE SE

19
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 258TH ST

19
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
7T

H 
AV

E S
E

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 254TH PL

SE 256TH PL

189TH AVE SE

17
5TH PL S E

159TH PL SE

18
1S

T P
L S

E

16
2N

D A
VE

 SE

19
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

185TH LOOP SE

SE 263RD ST

SE 257TH PL

19
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 254TH ST

SE 245TH PL

SE 246TH PL

19
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 247TH PL

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 241ST PL

SE 261ST CT

19
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 243RD ST

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 252ND PL

16
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 24
8TH

 PL

SE 265TH PL

SE 255TH PL

SE 251ST PL

183RD CT SE

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
7 T

H  P
L S

E

SE 258TH PL

186TH CT SE

19
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

162
ND

 PL
 SE

SE 242ND ST

SE 241ST ST

16 3RD  PL SE

18
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

187TH CT SE

19
8T

H 
CT

 S
E

SE 244TH L N

60
TH

 P
L S

E

SE 252ND CT

SE  245TH CT

16
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

16
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 264TH ST

SE WAX RD

SE 260TH PL

19 1ST  PL  SE

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 261ST CT

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

201ST AVE SE

SE 251ST PL

18
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

19
5T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 258TH ST

SE 266TH ST

SE 264TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 253RD PL

SE 263RD ST SE 264TH ST

16
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

SE 266TH ST

SE 262ND ST
SE 262ND ST

SE 265TH ST

188TH AVE SE

SE 267TH ST

SE 254TH ST

SR 18

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  260T H ST

SE 266TH ST
SE 266TH PL

SE 267TH PL

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 257TH ST

166TH AVE SE

SE 259TH PL

SE 263RD ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  265TH ST

18
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 258TH ST

SE 259TH PL

19
5T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH ST

19
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 261ST PL

SE 267TH PL

18
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

163
RD

 AV
E S

E

160TH PL SE

SE 261ST ST

SE 267TH ST

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND PL

SE 264TH ST

SE 262ND PL

SE 267TH PL

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
5T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE 258TH ST

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 263RD PL

SE 262ND ST

SE 244TH PL

SE 243RD ST

186TH PL SE

SE 263RD PL

161ST PL SE

18
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

172ND AVE SE

SE 267TH PL

SE 268TH ST

SE 260TH PL

19
2N

D 
PL

 S
E

SE 250TH PL

16
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 250TH CT

17
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

16
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 264TH CT

SE 259TH CT

16
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

198TH P L SE

SE 2 65 TH CT

SE 263RD ST

SE 252ND PL

16
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 263RD PL

174TH PL SE

SE 263RD ST

166
TH PL SE

185TH AVE SE

SE 266TH ST

SE 26 1ST P L

SE 251ST ST

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 264TH PL

16
7T

H  AV
E 

SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 264TH P L

20
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

16
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 266TH  PL

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

")")

")

")

")
")!A

")") ")
")")

")
")

")
") ")

")
")")

")

")
")

")
")")!(

")")

")")

")
")")")

")")")
")")

") ") !( !( !( ")

")")
")

!(") !(

!(
!(")
") !(

")!( !(")!(
!(

!( ")

!(
!(

")

!A!(!(

!(

!(")

")
")

")
")

")

")

")")
!(

")!(

!(")

")")

")")
!(

")")
!(!A!(

")!(
!(
!(

!(
!A")

")")

")")")

!A

")
")

")")")

")

")
!(
!( ")

")
!(

")")

!(

!(

")")

")")

!(

")!(

")!(

!A

") !(

")
")

")")

")")

!(")

") ")
")

")
")

")")

") ")
!(")!(
!(

")

")

")

")
")")

")!(
")

!("")
")")

")

")
")")

")!(
")")

")
")

")

")

")")

")")

")")
")

")")")
")

!(")!(

")!(

")!(!(
")!(

")
!(

")")
")")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")")
")

")
")!(

")
!(

")")

!(

!(")

")
")

!(!(!(

")

")!(

!(")

!(")

")

")

!(

")!(")!(")

!(

!(
")")!(

")")

!(

")")")
")")

")!A
")

")")")

")!(")

!(!(
!(") ")

")
")

!(!( !(
!( !A!(

")")

!(
!(")

")")

")")")!(
")")

")!(
")!( !(

") ") ")")") ") ") !( !(

!(

!(
")

")!(

")
")

!(

")")

")

!A!(
!A

")

") ")
") !(

")

")

")

")

")

!(

")
") ")")

")

!(

!(

!(
")

")!(

")
!(

!(
") ")

!(

")
!(!A

!(

")
!( ")

")
!(

")")

")")

")")
!(

") ") ") ") ") ")

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
!(
!(!(

!(")

")") !(

")")

")!(

")

")

")")

")")

!(")

!(

!( ")!( !(
")

!(")

")
!(

!(

!( !(
") ")

!( !(
")")

")")

!(")
!(") ")!(

")

!(

")

")

")")

")
") ")")

")

")")

")

")

")

!(

")

!A

")

")

")
!(

")
")

")")

!(")")
")

!(

")")

")") ")
") !(")

")
")
")

")
")")")")!(!( !(!( !(!( !(

")
")")

")")

")

")")

")")

")

")

")

")")

")")")

!(

")
")

")

")

")

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")
")")

")
")

")!A

!A

")")
")")

")

")")

")")")")

!(

")

") ")
")

")
")

")

")
!(!(

")")

")
")
")

")")

")
")

")

!A")

")

!(")
")
")

")")

")")
")")

")
")")

")

")

")")

")
")

!(

")
")")!A

")
")")

")

")

!(

")

!( ")
")")

")

!(

!(

")

")

!A

")

")")

")

")

")

")")

")

")
")")

!(

!(
")")")")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")")
")

")")
!(

")

")

")
")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")")

")
")

")

")
")
")

")
")

")

")

")
")

")

") ")

")

")

")

")") !(
!( !(

")
!(

")")
")")

")")")
")

")")

") ")
")")

")")")

")
")")

")

")

")

")

")

!( ")

")

")

")")")

")
")

")

")
!(

")

")

!A

")

")

")

")

")
")") ")!(")

!( !A
!(
")")

")")

")
!(

")")
")")")

")")

")")

")

")")

!(

")")

")") ")
")

")
") !( ")")

")

")
!(
")

")
") ")")!(

")")

")")

")

!(

")")

")

")")

")

")")

")")

")")

")")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")")

!A

")")

!(

")")

")")!(")")

")")

")")

")")

!( ")

")

")

")
!(")!(")")")

!(
")

")

")

")

")
")
!(")

")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")")

!(
")!(

!(

")

")")
")")

!(

!(
")")

!(
")")

")")

")
!A
!(

")") ")
!A
!(

!(
")")

")")

")")
!(

")

")")

")")

!(

")")

")")

!(

")")!(

!(

")
")!(")

")

") ")")
")")

!(
")") !(

")
")

")")

!A ")
")

")")

")
")

")
")

")

")

!A

!A

")

")")

")")

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")
")

")
!(")

")

")

")

!(

")
!(

!(

")

")

")

")

") !(
!( ")

!A
")

!(

!(

")

")

")

")

!(
")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")!(
!A

!(!(

")")

")
")

")")")") ")") ")
")
")
")

")
")

!A

")

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!A

") ")

")

")

")

") ") ") ") ") ")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

!(")")")
")

")
!A

")")")")

")")")
!(
")

")

!A
")

!A

!(
")

(

!(

")

")

")

!A")

")")

")
") ")

")

")!( ")")
")

")
")")
!(

")")

")")!(")
!(

!(

")

")

")

")

!(")
")

")

")")

")

")
")")

!A
!A

")")
")")!(")") !(

!(")

!(")

")

!A

")")

")

")")
")

")!(

!( !( !(")!(
!(!(

")")
")

")
")
")")

")
")

")
")")

")

!(

")

")")")
!(

")")
")

")

") ")")

")")

")")

!(!(

")

")")

")")

")
")")")")

!(!(!(
")!(

!(
")

!(

!(")

")")
")

!(")

!(")

!(

")
") ")

") !(!(!(
!(

!(
")")")

")")")
")

!(!A

!A!A")")

")
")

")")")

")!(
") !(

") ")
") !(

")
!(

!( !(

")
")

")")

")

")
")

")")!(

!(

")
")

")")
")")

!(

")")") ")
")")")

!(

!( !(

!(

") ")

")

")
") ")!(

")

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
")
")
")

")
")!(

")

!(

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")

!(
")

!(")")

")")
(

")
!(

")")

")
")

")")
!(
")!(")

")!(

!(

")

")")

")")

")")

")")

")")
")")
")
!(

")

!(

!(

")")

!(")
!(!A
!(

")") ")
")")

")

!(
!(
")")!(

")") ")

")

")")

")")

!(
!(
")")
")
!( ")

")")")

")")

")")

")")

!(!(")

")

")")") ")
")

")
!(")

")

")
")!(

")!(

!(

")")

")")
!(

")")!(
")")

")")

")

")")
!( ")!(

!(

!(

")
") !(

")")

")")

")") ")

")")!(
!(

")")

")")
!(

!(

!(

")")
")!( !(

")

")

")
")")
")!A

")") ")

")")

")")

!(

")

")")
!(

")!( ")
")")

!(")
")!(

")!(

")")

")")")!(

")")

!(
!( ")")

")

")")") ")")
")

!(

")")

")")

")!(

!(

!(
!(

")")

")

")")

!A")

")")

")")

")

")")

")")!A ")")") ")
") ") ") !A

(

( (

(

(
(

(

")")
((

")

((

(

!(

")

")
")
")")")")

")
")")")")

") ")
") ")")

")

")

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")")

")")

")")

")")
!(

!(

!(

!(
")

") !(

( (

(

(

")

")
(

")") !( !(

!(")

")

!(
")")

!(")
")")

")")
")
")

!(

")")

")")

!(

!(
")

!(
")

")

")")

")

")")

")
")

!(!(

")!(

!(
")

")!(

")!(
!(

!(

!(

")

")")

")

")

")

!(")

")
")

")

")!(

")!(

!(

!(

!(

!(")

!(

")

!( ")
")

")
")

")

!(!( !(

") ")
!(

")")

")!(")

")")")
")")

( (

!( !(

(

(
(

( (

( (

(

(

")")

")

")")

")")
")

")")
")

")")

!(

")")")
")")

!(
!( ") ")")

(

(

(

( (

(

(((

#*

#*
")")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

")

")
")

!(
!(

")!(")

")")

")")

")")

")")

")

")")

")")")")
")
")

")

")")

")")
")

")")
")
")

")
")

")
")
!(

")

")
")")

(

(

(
( ( ( (

(
( ( (

(

(

(((

(

")

")
")

")")

(

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

")!(
")

")!(
") !(

") !( !(
") ")")")

")

")")

")")

")
")
")")

")")

") ")

")")

(

(

(
(

(

((((

(

(

(

!(
!( !(

") !(

!(

") ") !(

!( !( !A
")

!(!(

")
")!(

")")

")
!(

")

!(

")

!(

")")

")

")")

!(

!(

!A!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

")
")")

!(

")")

")") ")

")")

")

")")

")")

")")
")")

")")")

")
")

")

")")

")
")

")

")
") ")

")")
!(

")")
")
")

")

")

!(

(

(

( (

( (

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(
(

!(

(
(

(

")

") !(

")

") ")

(
(

")")

!A

")
")
")

")
")

")")

")

") ")
")

")")
")")

")

(

(

(

(")")
")
")

")

")
(

(

")")

!A
")

")

")

")

")

")!A

")

")

")

")

")

")
")")

")

")

")")

")

")")

!A

!(

!(

")

")")

")

") ")

")

")

!(!A
(

")")")

")

!(

(

(
(

( (

(

(

(

(

((

(

( (

(

((

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

")

")!(
!(
!(
")!(
")
!(

!(!(
!(

")!(

")!(

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

!(

((
(

(

(

!A
!A
!(

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")") ")

(

")

")")

")

")

")")")")

")")
")
")")

")

!(

!A")
")

") ")

")

")

")

")") ")

")

")
")

")
")
")

")

")

!(

((

(

((

(

(
(

((((

(((((

(

(((((

(

(

(( (

(

(

(

(

(

!(

!(!(

")")

")

!(

")

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
(

(

(

(

(

")

!(

!( !( !(

")

") ")

")")
")")

!A
")

")")
")")")")

")

!(!A
!(

!A !( !(

")

")

")
!(
!(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")

")

(

((

( ( (((
(

( (

(

(

(

(((

( (((

(

(

!(

")

!A

")

")

(

(

(

")

!(

")")

")

")

!(

")

!(
!(

!(

")")!(!(!(

!(

")

")

")

(

(

!(!( !(

!(

!(!(
!(

")

!(!(

(

")

") ")")")")")")")

( (

") ") ") ")")

")

")

!(

")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

(

(

")

")

!(") (

.
1 inch = 1,250 feet

City of Covington 
Drainage Map

Created By: Shawn Buck 06/13/2011

Zone 1

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

!A Control Structure

") Type 1, Public

" Stormfilter

!( Type 2, Public

Zone 2

58 of 79



SR 18

RAMP

SE 272ND ST

SE WAX RD

15
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 261ST ST

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

160TH AVE SE

SE 279TH PL

SE 267TH ST

17
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 262ND PL

SE 267TH PL

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

19
1S

T P
L S

E

194
TH

 AV
E S

E

SE 270TH PL

17
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 265TH ST

SE 266TH PL

SE 277TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

17
2N

D 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND ST

17
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 SE SE 268TH ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

186TH PL SE

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

16
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

16
9T

H 
PL

 S
E SE 270TH ST

17
9T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 264TH ST

17
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH PL

17
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

17
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16 6 TH AVE SE

16
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

159TH AVE SE

SE 259TH PL

17
1S

T P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

16
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

18
4T

H P
L S

E

188TH AVE SE

187TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

SE 268TH PL

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

16
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

189TH AVE SE

17
5T

H PL S E

159TH PL SE 16
2N

D A
VE

 SE

17
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 263RD ST

18
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 257TH PL

19
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD
SE 261ST CT

SE 269TH PL

SE 264TH PL

SE 280TH PL

SE 275TH ST

SE 265TH PL

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 278TH PL

15
8T

H 
PL

 SE

18
7 T

H  P
L S

E

SE 271ST CT

186TH CT SE

15
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 270TH CT

19
3R

D 
CT

 SE

187TH CT SE

SE 271ST PL

SE 277TH ST

16
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 270TH PL

16
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 264TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

19 1ST  PL  SE

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 261ST CT
SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

18
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 258TH ST

SE 262ND PL

18
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
2N

D A
VE

 SE

SE 266TH ST

SE 264TH ST

19
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

SE 263RD ST

SE 266TH ST

SE 262ND ST

188TH AVE SE

SE 269TH ST

SE 267TH ST

SR 18

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  260T H ST

SE 271 ST  CT

SE 267TH PL

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 271ST ST

15
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE SE 259TH PL

SE 279TH  PL

SE 263RD ST

183RD PL SE

SE 265TH ST

18
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 258TH ST

SE 259TH PL
SE 260TH ST

SE 261ST PL

SE 267TH PL

163
RD

 AV
E S

E

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 267TH ST

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND PL

SE 264TH ST

SE 269TH ST

RAMP

SE 262ND PL

16
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
5T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE 258TH ST

SE 263RD PLSE 263RD PL

SE 262ND ST

SE 261ST PL

16
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

186TH PL SE

161ST PL SE

172ND AVE SE

SE 267TH PL

SE 268TH ST

168TH PL SE

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 259TH CT

16
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 2 65 TH CT

SE 263RD ST

16
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  269TH ST

SE 263RD PL

174TH PL SE

SE 263RD ST

166
TH PL SE

185TH AVE SE
SE 266TH ST

SE 26 1ST P L

SE 264TH PL

SE 260TH ST

16
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 266TH  PL

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE WAX RD

SE 272ND ST

168th PL SE

165
th PL S

E

SE 270TH PL

!(")

") ")
")

")
")

")")")")")
!( !(")

")

!(
")!(

")!(

")")!(
!(
")

")")

") ")
!(")!(
!(

")

")

")

")
")")

")!(
")

!("")
")")

")

")
")")

")!(
")")

")
")

")

")

")")

")")

")")
")")")")

")
!(")!(

")!(

")!( !(
")!(

")
!(

")
")

")")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")")
")

")
")!(

")!(

")")

!(

!(")

")
")

!(!( !(
!( !A!(

!(")

")
")

!(

")")

")

!A!(
!A

")

") ")
") !(

")

")

")

")

")

!(

")
") ")")

")

!(

!(

!(
")

")!(

")
!(

!(
") ")!(

")
!(!A

!(

")
!( ")

")
!(

")")

")")

")")
!(

!(")

")") !( ")!(
") ")")

!(")

!(

!( ")!( !(
")

!(")

")!(

!(

!( !(
") ")

!( !(
")")

")")

!(")
!(") ")!(

")

!(

")

")

")
") ")")

")

")")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")")!(!( !(!( !(!( !(

")
")")

")")

")

")")

")")

")

")

")

")")

")")")

!(

")
")

")

")

")

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")
")")

")
")

")
!(
!A
!A

!(")

!(

!(")

")
")

") ")

!(
!(

")
!(")

")

")")

")")

")!A

!A

")")
")")

")

")")

")")")")

!(

")

")

!A

")

")")

")")

")

")")

")
")")

!(

!(
")")")")

")
")")

")

")")

")")
!(

!(

")
!A

")
")

")
") ")

")")

")")
")")

")

")

")
")

")")
")
")")

")")
")

")
")
") ")

")")

") ")")")

")!(
")")

")")")!(

")

")

")
")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")")

")
")

")

")
")
")

")
")

")

")

")
")

")

") ")

")

")

")")

")
")

")

")

")
")") ")!(")

")")
")
")")")

")")

")")

")

")")

!(

")")

")") ")
")

")
") !( ")")

")

")
!(
")

")
") ")")!(

")")

")")

")")

")")

!A

")")

!(

")")

")")
!(")")

")")

")")

")")

!( ")

")

")

")
!(")!(")")")

!(
")

")")

")")

")")

")")

!(
")!(

!(

")

")")
")")

!(

!(
")")

!(
")")

")")

")
!A
!(

")") ")
!A
!(

!(
")")

")")

")")
!(

")

")")

")")

!(

")")

")")

!(

")")!(

!(

")
")!(")

")

") ")")
")")

!(
")") !(

")
")

")")

!A ")
")

")")

")

")
")
")

")

")
!(")

")

")

")

!(

")
!(

!(

")

")

")

")

") !(
!( ")

!A
")

!(

!(

")

")

")

")

!(
")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

") ")

")

")

")

") ") ") ") ") ")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

!(")
")")

")
")

!A

")")")")

")")")
!(
")

")

!A
")

!A

")

!(
")

(

!(

")

")

")

!A")

")
")")

!A
!A

")")
")")!(")") !(

!(")

!(")

")

!A")!(

!(

")

")

")")

")")")

!A

")
")
")
")

") ")

")!A
")
!(

")!A

")
!(
!(

")")

!(

!(")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")
!(")

")") ")")

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

")
!A

!(

")")
")

")!(

!( !( !(")!(
!(!(

")")
")

")
")")")

")
")

")")")

")

!(

")

")")")
!(

")")
")

")

") ")")

")")

")")

!(!(

")

")")

")
")")")")

!(!(!(
")!(

!(
")

!(

!(")
")")

")

!(!A

!(
")!(

")
") ")")

!A

!(!(

")")
")!(!(

")!(!(

")")

!(!(")

")!(!(

")

")")") ")
")

")
!(")

")

")
")!(

")!(

!(

")")

")")
!(

")")!(
")")

")")

")

")")
!( ")!(

!(

!(

")
") !(

")")

")")

")") ")

")")!(
!(

")")

")")
!(

!(

!(

")")
")!( !(

")

")

")
")

")
")!A

")") ")

")")

")")

!(

")

!(")

!A

")")

")!(
")")

!(
")")

")

")")
!(

")!( ")
")")

!(")
")!(

")!(

")")

")")")!(

")")

!(
!( ")")

")

")")") ")")
")

!(

")")

")")

")!(

!(

!(
!(

")
")

")!(
")

!(!A

")")

")

")")

!A")

")")

")")

")

")")

!(

")")!A ")")")

")")
")

")
") ") ") !A

!(
!A ")

")
")")

")!(
")")

")

")
") ")

")")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")

(

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")")

")")
(

(

(

((

(

(

")")

")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

")
")
")
")

")

") (

(
( (

( (
(

((

( (

( (

(

((

(

(

(

(

(
(

")")

")")")

") ")

") ")")

")
( ")

")")

!(!( ") ") ") ") ")

") ")

")")

(

((

(

(

(
(

( (

(

(

")!(
")")
")")

")")

")")

( (

")

")

")

")

")

(
(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")
")

")
")

")
")

")
")

(

(

( (

( (

(

(

")
")

(

(

")
")

")
")

(

(

(

")
")

(

(

")
")

(

")")

")

")")

")")

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

")")

")")

")

")")
")
")

")

(

( (

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

")
")")")!(")")

( (

(( (( (

(

(

((

( (

(

(

(

(

(

( ( (
!(

!(

!(

!(
(

!(

!(

(

(

!(
")

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")

")

")

")
")

")

!(

!(")

!(
")

")

")")

")

")")

")
")

!(!(

")!(
( (

(
(

")")

")

")")

")")
")

")")")

")")

!(

")")")
")")

")
")

!(
!(

")!(")

")")

")")

")")

")")

")

")")

")")")")
")
")

")

")")

")")
")

")")
")
")

")
")

")
")
!(

")

")
")")

")
!( !(

") ")
!A ")

") ")

")

")

")

")

")

") ")

")") ")

")

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")
")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

!(

(

((

(

(

(

(
( ( ( (

(
( ( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(((

(

") ")

")

")
")

")

")")

")

")")

")
")")

")

")")

")

")
")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

!(

")

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

")

")")")

")
")

")
!( ")
!(

(!(

!(!(

")

")
")

")

")

")
")(

(

(

(

(

")

")
!A

(

(

(

( (

((

(

( (

(

(

")

(

!(

")")

")")

(

(

((

(

(

(

( (

(

( (

( (

(

!(
(

(

")

")

( ( (

(

(

(

((

(

((

") ")")

")")
!(

(

!(

(

(

(

(

(

")

")

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
((

((
(

(

(

(
(

(
(

( ( (

( (

((

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(
(
(
(

(

(((((

(((
((

(((

(

(

(( ((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(((

(

(
(

( (

(

(
(

((

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")!(
")

")!(
") !(

") !( !(
") ")")")

")

")")

")")

")
")
")")

")")

") ")

")")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

( (

((

(

( (((
(((

(((

( (
(

(

(
(

( (

((

(

((

!(
(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

")

(

(

(
(

( ( ( (( ( (
(((( (

(

") ") ") ")") ") ")
")

")
")

")

!(
")

(((

")

!(
!(
!(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

((

!A!(

!(

")

!(")
")

!(

!(

!(

")
")!(

")")

")
!(

")

!(

")

!(

")")

")

")")

!(!(

!(
!(

(

(

( (

( (

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(
(

!(

(
(

(

")

") !(

")

(

( (
(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

(
(

")
")
")

")
") ")")

")

")

")

") ")

")
")

")
")

")")
")")

")

(

(

(

(")")
")
")

") ") ") ") ") ") ") ")

")
")

")

")

")
(

(

!(

")")

!A
")

")

")

")

")

")!A

")

")

")

")

")

")

#*

#*

#*

")

!(

#*

#*

!(

")

")
")")

")

")

")")

(

(

(

(

(

")")

")

")

(

")

(

((

(

!A")")")")")

!(

!(!(

!(

!A

!(

!(

")")

!(!(
!(

""
!(

!(!(

""
")
")
")

") ")

")

")

")

")

")")

")

")

")")

""")!(
!(")

!(
!(

(
(

( (

(
(

")!(

")

")
")
")

(
(

")")

")")
")
")")

")

!(

!A")
")

") ")

")

")

")

")") ")

")

")
")

")
")
")

")

")

!(

((

(

((

(

(
(

((((
(( (

(

(

(

")

")

")

(

")

")

")

")

")

!(

")

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

!(

")

") ")

!A
")

!(

")")
")")")")

")

!(!A
!(

!A !( !(

")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

!(

")

!A

")

!A
!A

!(
!(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")

") ")

!(

")

")

")

(

((

")

!(

")!A

")")
")
")

!A(

(

")

!(

!(

(

!( ")
")

(

(

(

(

(

!(

(

(

")

!(

!(

!(

")!(

!(

!(

")

!(

!(

"
!(

")!( ")!(
")

") !(")
!(")")

")

")
") ")!(
") !(

!( !(") ")

") !( ")!(")

")

")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

")")")")

!(

")")

")

(

(

(

")
")

(

(

(
(

((

(

!(

!(")

( (
(

")

(
(

(

(

((

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

")

(

(

(

( (

(

!(!(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

")

(

(

(

(

")

(

(

((

(

(

")

!(

!(

(

(
(

(
(

( (

((
(
(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(
!(
!(

!(

")
")

(
(

(

(

(
(( ( ( (

((

( ( (((
(

( (

(

(

(

(((

(

(

(

( ( ((

(

(

(

(

((((((

(

(
((

(

(
(
(

(

((

(
(

(
((
((

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

!(

(

((

(((

(

")

!(

!(

((
(
(

( (
(

(
((

(

(

")

")
")

")

")

")

")")")")!A (((

(
(

( (

( (

(
(

#*#*
#*#*#*#*

#*#*
")

")")

!A

")

(

(

")
( (

((

")")
") ")

")

")

!(

")

!(
!(

!(

")")!(!(!(

!(

")

")

(

")

")

!(!( !(

!(

!(!(
!(

")

")

!(!(

")(

")

(

")
")

")

")")

")

")

")

!A

")

")

")

")

!(

!A

")

(

!(

")

(

!(") (

.
1 inch = 1,250 feet

City of Covington 
Drainage Map

Created By: Shawn Buck 06/13/2011

Zone 1

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

!A Control Structure

") Type 1, Public

" Stormfilter

!( Type 2, Public

Zone 3

59 of 79



SE 256TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 272ND ST

SE WAX RD

SE 261ST ST

20
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 279TH PL

19
7T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND PL

SE 267TH PL

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

19
1S

T P
L S

E

194
TH

 AV
E S

E

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 271ST ST

SE 265TH ST

SE 266TH PL

SE 277TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

21
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 259TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

186TH PL SE

SE 269TH ST

20
1S

T A
VE

 S
E

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

17
5T

H 
WA

Y S
E

SE 270TH ST

199
TH

 AV
E S

E

17
9T

H 
PL

 SE

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH PL

17
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE
 18

4T
H 

PL

SE 259TH PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 SE

19
5T

H P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

18
4T

H P
L S

E

188TH AVE SE

SE 266TH ST

187TH AVE SE

SE 26
3R

D PL

SE 268TH PL

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

20
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

21
1T

H 
AV

E 
SE

189TH AVE SE

17
5T

H PL SE

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

21
2T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
6T

H 
PL

 SE

19
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD
SE 261ST CT

20
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 261ST PL

20
6T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE 269TH PL

SE 263RD CT

SE 280TH PL

SE 265TH PL

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

18
7T

H 
PL

 SE

20
1S

T 
PL

 SE

SE 271ST CT

SE 258TH PL

186TH CT SE

19
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

20
9T

H A
VE

 SE

20
1S

T C
T 

SE

SE 268TH CT

SE 270TH CT

19
3R

D 
CT

 SE

187TH CT SE

SE 271ST PL
19

8T
H 

CT
 S

E

20
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 270TH PL

SE 264TH ST

SE 260TH PL

191ST  P L SE

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

201ST AVE SE

20
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
4T

H 
P L

 S
E

19
5T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 258TH ST

18
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND ST

19
2N

D A
VE

 SE

SE 271ST ST

SE 266TH ST

19
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 268TH ST

SE 263RD ST SE 264TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 266TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 265TH ST

188TH AVE SE

SE 269TH ST

SE 267TH ST

SR 18

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  271 ST  CT

SE 266TH ST
SE 266TH PL

SE 268TH ST

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 270TH ST

SE 257TH ST

SE 264TH ST

SE 259TH PL

21
1T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE 263RD ST

SE 269TH ST

183RD PL SE

18
9T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 258TH STSE 258TH ST

SE 259TH PL

19
5T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH ST

20
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 268TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 261ST PL

SE 267TH PL

SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 267TH ST

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 267TH PL
SE 268TH ST

17
5T

H A
VE

 S
E

SE 262ND ST

186TH PL SE

SE 263RD PL

SE 260TH PL

SE 268TH ST

SE 270TH ST

20
3R

D A
VE

 S
E

20
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 265TH PL

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 264TH CT

SE 260TH CT

198TH  PL S E

SE 263RD ST

SE 269TH ST

SE 263RD PL

185TH AVE SE

SE 261ST CT

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 264TH  PL

SE 264TH P L

20
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 270TH PL

!(!(!(

!(!( !(
!( !A

!(

")")

!(
!(")

")")

")")")!(
")")

")") ") ") !( !(

!(

!(
")

")!(

")
")

!(

")")

")

!A!(
!A

!(

")

")

")!(

")
!(

!(
") ")

!(

")
!(

!(

")
!( ")

")
!(

")")

")")

")")
!(

") ") ") ") ") ")

")
")

")
")

")")

")
!(
!(!(

!(")

")") !(

")")

")!(

")

")

")")

")")

!(")

!(

!( ")
!( !(

")

!(")

")
!(

!(

!( !(
") ")

!( !(
")")

")")

!(")
!(") ")!(

")

!(

")

")

")
")

")
") ")")

")

")")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

")
!(

")
")

!A

!(
!(
")

")
")

")

")")

")")

")")

")
")")

!(

")")

!(")")
")

!(

")")

")") ")
") !(")

")")

")
")
")

")
")")")")!(!( !(!( !(!( !(

")
")")

")")

")

")")

")")

")

")

")

")")

")")")

!(

")
")

")

")

")

")
")

")
")

")")

")
")
")")

")
")

")
!(
!A

!A
!(")

!(

!(")

")
")

") ")

!(
!(

")
!(")

")

")")

")")

")!A

!A

")")
")")

")

")")

")")")")

!(

")

") ")
")

!A

")")

")
")")

")")

")
")")

")

")
")

")

")
!(!(

")")

")
")")

")")

")
")

")

!A")

")
!(")
")
")

")")

")")
")")

")
")")

")

")

")")

")
")

!(

")
")")!A

")
")")

")

")

!(

")

!( ")
")")

")

!(

!(

")

")

!A

")

")")

")

")

")

")")

")")

")

")")

")
")")

!(

!(
")")")")

")

")")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")")
")

")")
!(

!(

")
!A

")
")

")
") ")

")")

")")
")")

")

")

")
")

")")
")
")")

")")
")

")
")
") ")

")")

") ")")")

")!(
")")

")")")!(

")

")
")

")

")
")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")")

")
")

")

")")
")

")
")

")

")

")
")

")

") ")

")

")

")

")")
!(
!( !(

")
!(

")")
")")

")")")
")

")")

") ")
")")

")")")

")
")")

")

")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")

!( ")

")

")

")")")

")
")

!(

")
")

")
!( ")")

")
") ") ")

")

")

")

!A

")

")

")

")

")
")") ")!(")

!( !A
!(
")")

")")

")
!(

")")")")")

")")

")")

")

")")

!(

")")

")") ")
")

")
") !( ")")

")

")
!(
")

")
") ")")!(

")")

")")

")

!(

")")

")

")")

")

")")

")")

")")

")")

!(

")")

")")

")")

")")

!A

")")

!(

")")

")")!(")
")

")")

")")

")")

!( ")

")

")

")
!(")!(")")")

!(
")

")
")

!( ")
")

")

")

")

")

")
")")

")
")

")

!(")

")

!(

")

")
!(

!(

")
") ")")

")")

")")

")")

")")

!(
")!(

!(

")

")")
")")

!(

!(
")")

!(
")")

")")

")
!A
!(

")") ")
!A
!(

!(

")")

")")

")")
!(

")

")")

")")

!(

")")

")")

!(

")")!(

!(

")
")!(")

")

") ")")
")")

!(
")
") !(

")")

")")

!A ")
")

")")

")

")
")
")

")

")

!A

!A

")

")")

")")

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")
")

")
!(")

")

")

")

!(

")
!(

!(

")

")

")

")

") !(
!( ")

!A
")

!(

!(

")

")

")

")

!(
")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

")

")

!(

")

")")

")
")

")
")

")

")
!A

")

")!(
!A

!(!(

")
!(!(!(
!(

")")

")
")")")")")

")")

")!(")

")")
")")

")")")
")")

")")") ") ") ")

")
")

")")")") ")") ")

")")
!(")")

")
")

")
")

!A

")

!(

!(!(

")

!(

!(!A

!(

") ")

")

")

")

") ") ") ") ") ")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

!(")")")
")

")
!A

")")")")

")")")
!(
")

")

!A
")

!A

")

")")
")
")

!A
")

!(
")

(

!(

")

")

")

!A")

")

")")!A ")")")

")")
")

")
") ") ")

!A
!(

!A ")

")
")")")!(

")")
")

")
") ")

")")
")

")
")")
")

")( ")

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

")
")")")!(")")

( (

(( (( (

(

(

((

( (

(

(

(

(

(

( ( (
!(

!(

!(

!(
(

!(

!(

(

(

!(
")

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

")

!A")
")

#*")

")
#*

#*

")

!(

(

(
(

(

")

")")

")")

")")

")")
!(

!(

!(

!(
")

") !(

( (

(

(

")

")

(

(

(

( (

(

(((

#*

#*
")")

")

")

")

!(

")

")
")

!(
!(

")!(")

")")

")")

")")

")")

")

")")

")")")")
")
")

")

")")

")")
")

")")
")
")

")
")

")
")
!(

")

")
")")

(

((

(
(

( ( (

(

(

(

(

#*

#*
#*
#*

#*

")")") ")")") ")

")

")
")

")

")")

")

")")

")
")")

")

")")

")

")
")

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

( (

(

( (

( (

(

!(
(

(

")

")

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
((

((
(

(

(

(
(

(
(

( ( (

(

(

(

(

((

(

( (

(

(

(

(
(
(
(

(((
((

(((

(

( (

(

(
(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

( ( (

(
(

(

")

")")

")

")")
")

(
(

")")")(

(

((")") ")")")")!(

((
(

")

!A
")

")

!(")

")

(
(
(

(

(

")

")

")

") ")

")")

(
(

")")

!A

")
")
")

")
")

")")

")

")

")

") ")

")
")

")
")

")")
")")

")

(

(

(

(")")
")
")

") ") ") ") ") ") ") ") ")

")
")

")

")

")

(

(

!(

")")

!A
")

")

")

")

")

")!A

")

")

")

")

")

")

#*

#*

!(

")

")

")")

(

(

(

(

(

")")

")

")

(

(((((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(")

(

((

(

(

(

(

(((

")

")

")
")!A")")")")")

")")

") ")

")

")

!(!A
(

")

(

(
(

( (

(

(

(

(

((

(

( (

(

((

(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

")

")!(
!(
!(
")!(
")
!(

!(!(
!(

")!(

")!(

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

!(

(

")

")")

")

")

")")

")") ")

")
")

")
")
")

!(
")

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

!A
")

!A

")") ")")")")

")

!(!A
!(

!A !( !(

")

")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

!(

")

!A

")

!A
!A

!(
!(

")

")

")!( ")!(
")

") !(")
!(")")

")

")
") ")!(
") !(

!( !(") ")

") !( ")!(")

")

")

(
(

")

(

(

((

(

(

(
(

( (

(
((
(

(

")

")

")

")")

")

")

!(

")

")

")

(

")

!(!( !(

!(

!(!(
!(

")

") ")
")

!(!(

")

")

(

(

")

!(

!A

")

(

!(

")

")

(

!(") (

.
1 inch = 1,250 feet

City of Covington 
Drainage Map

Created By: Shawn Buck 06/13/2011

Zone 1

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

!A Control Structure

") Type 1, Public

" Stormfilter

!( Type 2, Public

Zone 4

60 of 79



Presettling Tank(s) Outfall

Stormfilter Facilities Facility ID AKA Project Structure(s) Type / Size Filters Structure ownership 2012 2013 2014

174th PL SE & SE 270th PL DI31093 Vet Clinic LID 99-01 2x50'-60" Vault 8'x16' 20 70'-60" infiltration CITY Filters Tanks Filters

174th PL SE & SE 272nd ST DI31072 Jiffy Lube LID 99-01 2x50'-60" Vault 8'x16' 20 70'-60" infiltration CITY Filters Tanks Filters

172nd AVE SE & SE 272nd ST Walgreens Driveway LID 99-01
25'-60"; possibly plugged, 
full of water

Vault 6'x12' 5 CITY Filters Tank Filters

172nd AVE SE & SE 272nd ST Walgreens ROW LID 99-01
25'-60"; possibly plugged, 
full of water

Vault 6'x12' 5 CITY Filters Tank Filters

SE 256th ST & 168th AVE SE DV11216 NA 1034 2x80'-48"/2x130'-48" Vault 8'x16' 31 Direct outfall CITY Filters Tanks Filters

SE 272nd st & WAX RD DV31100 NA 1039 8'x14' HDS Vault Vault 8'x16' 18 Direct outfall CITY NA HDS Vault Filters

172nd AVE SE & SE 260st ST Wingfield frontage Wingfield NA Manhole 48" 3 35'-36" infiltration Maint. Bond NA NA NA

SE 261st ST & 172nd AVE SE Wingfield frontage Wingfield NA Manhole 72" 9 70'-36" infiltration Maint. Bond NA NA NA

159th AVE SE & SE 265th CT end on 159th Covington Plat NA CB 2 Cartridge 2 Maint. Bond NA NA NA

SE 265th CT & 159th AVE SE  end on 159th Covington Plat NA CB 3 Cartridge 3 Maint. Bond NA NA NA

SE 265th CT & 159th AVE SE  end on 159th Covington Plat NA CB 3 Cartridge 3 52'-48" infiltration Maint. Bond NA NA NA

CITY OF COVINGTON STORMFILTER INVENTORY

Scheduled Maintenance

DI31071

DV21210

DV11143
46'-48" infiltration

35'-48" infiltration

StormfilterTreatment Train Presettling 
Tank(s) Stormfilter Outfall 

EXHIBIT A3

61 of 79



12 

EXHIBIT B1 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
WITHIN THE CITY OF MAPLE VALLEY 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide storm sewer cleaning services during this contract as 
follows.  See Maple Valley maps for more details (Exhibit B2 and B3) 
 
• Year 1 Annual CB route – Type I and II, including CB’s with oil/water separators 

(797), Area 1 Catch Basins – Type I and II (808), all Storm Filters within CBs 
(6 structures with a total of 6 filters), Storm Filters within vaults (10 vaults 
with approximately 266 filters), and cleaning of Stormwater Vaults (10).  All 
of these structures will be vacuum cleaned and operational.  All Storm Filter 
structures will be cleaned and filters in them replaced.   
 
Filter Replacement:  All structures with storm filters will be cleaned and 
filters replaced (see item 10 below).  This work shall include inspections of 
each basin, vault, or facility.  Inspection reports shall be provided to the City. 

 
• Year 2 Annual CB route – Type I and II, including CB’s with oil/water separators 

(797), Area 2 Catch Basins – Type I and II (1163).  All of these structures will 
be vacuum cleaned and operational.   

 
• Year 3 Annual CB route – Type I and II, including CB’s with oil/water separators 

(797), Area 3 Catch Basins – Type I and II (1414), and cleaning of 
Stormwater Vaults (10).  All of these structures will be vacuum cleaned and 
operational.  
 
 

Contractor will perform the following items: 
 
1. Contractor will provide all necessary labor, material, and equipment to perform the 

work described herein.  Cleaning catch basins will consist of vactoring 
sediment/debris and/or water from structure.  Cleaning of vaults will consist of 
washing of interior walls and vactoring of sediment/debris and/or water from 
structure.  Vaults with filters in them are anticipated to have low sediment 
accumulations.  However, it is the Bidder’s responsibility to verify conditions prior to 
submitting a bid.  

 
2. Contractor will follow a systematic route cleaning all Type I and Type II Catch 

Basins within the identified area, including those in Stormwater Retention Facilities 
and Storm Filter Vaults. 

 
3. Contractor will log, on a map provided by the City, the location of Type I and Type II 

Catch Basins that have been cleaned and indicate the direction of storm water flow 
from catch basin to catch basin.  

 
4. Once a catch basin is cleaned, contractor will mark the grate with permanent white 

paint in a manner directed by the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor. 
 

62 of 79



13 

5. Contractor will assess the condition of Type I and Type II Catch Basins after 
cleaning and notify the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor if any 
deficiencies or issues are found.  

 
6. Before leaving each catch basin location, contractor will clean all catch basin 

frames and grates/lids with high-pressure water. 
 
7. Contractor will dispose of the sediment in accordance with Department of Ecology 

requirements.  The Contractor shall obtain any necessary permits or licenses 
required to perform these services.  

 
8. The Contractor’s bid item prices shall include all disposal costs associated with 

cleaning of the storm facilities called out in this contract.  This includes any testing 
requirements.  No separate payment will be made for disposal of material.  Again, 
the Contractor will provide the City with copies of the waste disposal receipts from 
an approved disposal facility. 

 
9. Contractor will provide the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor monthly with 

copies of all waste disposal documents for verification of proper disposal of spoils. 
 
10. Filter Replacement:  There are approximately 272 filters that need to be replaced in 

year one within the City of Maple Valley.  Catch Basins and Vaults containing filters 
will be thoroughly cleaned.  Existing filter media will be vacuumed out, removed, 
and new filters installed by the Contractor.  New replacement filters will be provided 
to the Contractor by the City.  The Contractor shall make arrangements to pick up 
new filters from a City facility.  The Contractor will notify the City 30 days prior to 
needing filters from the City.  The removed plastic filter shells shall be handled with 
care so that they are not damaged.  These will be delivered by the Contractor 
undamaged to a City Maintenance Facility as directed by the City Maintenance 
Supervisor.  The price for Storm Filters (per each filter) will include the removal and 
disposal of the used filter media, installation of the new City provided filter, cleaning 
of the inside of the filter vault, and delivery of the used filter shell to the City. 

 
11. Contractor will provide emergency response 24-hours a day upon request by the 

City.  The Contractor must be able to meet a 60 minute maximum response time in 
an emergency/after hours call out. 

 
12. Contractor will provide the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor with work 

schedules prior to work commencing. 
 
13. Contractor will provide a weekly inspection log to the City of Covington 

Maintenance Supervisor via email or fax indicating completed work.  The log will be 
provided to the Contractor by the City. 

 
14. The City of Covington shall be invoiced within 30 days of completion of work. 

63 of 79



!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !( !(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(
!(!(!(

!(

!( !(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!( !(!(

!(!(!(!( !(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!( !(!( !(

!( !(

!(

!( !( !(!( !(
!(

!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(!( !(

!(!(!( !(!( !(!( !(!(
!( !(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(!(
!(

!(!( !(
!(!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!( !(!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(
!(

!(!( !( !(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(!( !(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!( !(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!( !(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(!( !(!( !(
!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(
!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(

!( !(
!( !(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!( !(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(!( !(!(!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(!(

!( !(!( !(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(!(
!(!( !(!(!( !(!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!( !(!( !(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!( !( !(

!(!(

!( !(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!( !( !( !(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!( !(

!(!(
!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(

!( !(!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(!(

!( !(
!( !(

!(

!(!( !(!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!( !(

!(
!(!(!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!( !(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!( !( !(

!(

!( !(!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!( !( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(

!(!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!( !( !(

!(
!(!(

!(!(!( !(!(!( !( !(!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!( !(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(
!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(
!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(
!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!( !(
!( !(

!( !(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!( !(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!( !(

!(!(!(!( !( !(

!( !(
!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!( !(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(

!( !(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!(

!(

!( !( !( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
!( !(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!( !(!( !(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!( !(
!( !(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!( !(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!( !(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!( !( !( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(!( !( !(!( !(!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(!( !( !(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(

!( !(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!( !(!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!( !( !(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!( !( !(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!( !( !( !(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!( !(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(
!(
!(
!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(
!( !( !( !( !(

!(

!(!(!(!(!( !(!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(!( !(!( !(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!( !( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(
!( !(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!( !(!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(!( !( !(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !(!( !(!(
!(

!(!(!( !(!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!( !(!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(

!( !(
!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(
!( !(

!(!(
!( !(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(!( !(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!( !( !(!( !( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(!( !( !( !(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!( !(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!( !(!( !(!(!(

!( !(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!( !(!(

!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !( !(!(
!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!( !(
!( !(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!( !( !( !(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !( !( !( !( !(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!( !( !( !(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(
!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(

!( !(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!( !(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(!( !(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!( !( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(
!(!( !(

!(
!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!( !( !( !( !( !(

!(
!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !( !(!(

!(!(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(
!( !(!(!(!( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!( !(

!( !(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!!

!!
!!!!!!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !
! !

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

SE  280TH  S T

21
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  260TH  S T

SE  248TH  S T

21
2T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  WAX  RD

SE
 2

71
ST

 P
L

226TH  PL  SE

20
8T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  262N D ST

SE  258TH  S T

SE  264TH  S T

220TH  AVE SE

23
2N

D 
AV

E  
SE

22
4T

H  
AV

E 
SE

23
8T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  259TH  S T

SE  252N D PL

SE  269TH  S T

SE  231ST  ST

SE  254TH  P L

SE  253R D PL

23
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  236TH  P L

SE  LA KE  WILD ER NE SS  DR S

SE  244TH  S T

23
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

24
2N

D 
PL

 S
E

SE  285TH  S T

21
5T

H 
CT

 S
E

23
0T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  276TH  S T

237TH  PL  SE

SE  240TH  S T

SE  254TH  S T

21
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  256TH  S T

SE  253RD PL

MAPLE  VA LLEY-B LACK  DIAM
OND RD  SE

W ITTE  RD SE

W
IT

TE
 R

D 
SE

SE  WAX  RD

SE  260TH  S T SE  260TH  S T

SE  253R D PL

SE  271S T  PL

WITTE  R
D S

E

W
IT

TE
 R

D 
SE

SE  WAX  RD

W
IT

TE
 R

D 
SE

W ITTE  RD SE

SE  276TH  S T

WITTE  RD SE

22
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  2 56 TH  PL

21
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE  2 5 8T H  ST

SE  258TH  S T

SE  KE NT- KAN GLEY  R D

222ND PL  SE

22
2N

D 
AV

E  
SE

214TH
 AVE  SE

21 3T H 
P L 

S E

216TH 
AVE 

SE

SE  271S T PL

SE  268TH  S T

SE  267TH  S T

SE  266TH  P L

21
8T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE  270TH  S T

SE  269TH  S T

22
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

22
0T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

22
0T

H
 P

L 
SE

SE  2 6 4T H  S T

SE  266TH  S T

SE  265TH W
A Y

21
6T

H  
AV

E 
SE

21
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

214TH  AVE  SE

21
6T

H  
AV

E 
SE

21
7T

H  
AV

E 
SE

W I TT
E R

D 
SE

22 0 TH  PL  SE

SE  272N D ST

SE  2 79
TH

 S
T

22
8T

H
 A

VE
 S

E22
4T

H
 P

L 
SE

SE  286TH  S T

SE  2 8 7 TH ST

SE  284TH  S T

M AP L E RI D GE  WAY  SE

S E  M AP LE R ID GE D R

S E  274T H P L

25
5T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  277TH  P L

SE  281S T ST

SE  283R D ST

23
1S

T
 P

L
 S

E

23
0 T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  280TH  S T

23
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE  282ND PL

SE  281S T ST

MA
PL

E 
VA

LL
EY

-B
LA

CK
 D

IA
M

ON
D 

RD
 S

E

23
6T

H
 P

L 
SE

SE  276TH  S T

23
3R

D  
A V

E 
S E

SE  282ND ST

SE 28 3RD ST

SE  280TH P L

SE  279 T H ST

22
8T

H  
AV

E 
SE

234T H PL SE

SE 264T H ST

SE 2 63 RD  ST

23
2N

D
 P

L 
S E

23
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE 2 67TH  PL

22
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

228TH AVE SE

SE  272N D ST

SE 26 8TH P L

SE  26 9TH  ST

SE  2 6 4 TH  PL

22
6T

H 
AV

E  
SE

22
7T

H
 P

L 
SE

SE  2 7 7 TH  ST

SE 27 8TH WAY

SE  28 0TH  ST

S E  27 3RD  P L

SE  2 67 T H PL

SE 26 1S T  P L

SE  2 6 2 N D P L

SE 264T H  ST

SE  2 40 T H  B L VD

SE  25 0 TH  S T

237TH  AVE SE

SE 24 8T H  ST

SE  2 4 7T H C T

SE 245T H  ST

SE 243R D PL

S E  2 4 3 RD  S T

23 7 TH  WAY SE

23
5T

H 
AV

E 
S E

23
1S

T 
PL

 S
E

SE  24 0 TH WAY

SE  2 4 2 ND S T

SE 239TH  ST

SE  24 1S T  P L

SE  247 TH S T

235TH  WAY  SE

23
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

23
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

22
8T

H  
AV

E  
SE SE  244TH  S TS E  24 4T H  S T

230TH WAY SE

1

2

3

Vicinity Map of Stormwater Vaults 
and Stormfilters

2 vaults

3 vaults

2 stormfilters

2 stormfilters

(16 total) *

Legend
!( stormfilter locations

stormlines or ditches
!( storm cb

stormwater ponds

!
!

!
!

! ! !! !!

!
!

!!!!!!!

vactoring zones

private areas

stormwater vaults (26 total) *
* breakdown: 10 stormfilter vaults, 6 stormvilter CBs, 
16 water quality vaults

EXHIBIT B2

64 of 79



!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !( !( !(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(
!(!(!(

!(

!( !(
!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!( !(!(

!(!(!(!( !(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!( !(!( !(

!( !(

!(

!( !( !(!( !(
!(

!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(!( !(

!(!(!( !(!( !(!( !(!(
!( !(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(!(
!(

!(!( !(
!(!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(!( !( !(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(
!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!( !(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!( !(!( !(

!(
!( !(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!( !(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(
!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(

!( !(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(!( !(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(!( !(!(!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(!(

!( !(!( !(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(!(!(!( !(!(!( !(!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!( !(!( !(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!( !( !(

!(!(

!( !(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!( !( !( !(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!( !(

!(!(
!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(

!( !(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(

!(
!( !(

!( !(
!(

!(!( !(!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!( !(

!(
!(!(!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!( !(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!( !(!( !( !(!(

!( !(!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!( !( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(

!(!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!( !( !(

!(
!(!(

!(!(!( !(!(!( !( !(!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!( !(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(
!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(
!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(
!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!( !(

!(!(!(

!(!( !(!(

!(!(

!( !(
!( !(

!( !(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(!(

!( !(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!( !(

!(!(!(!( !( !(

!( !(
!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!( !(
!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(

!( !(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!(

!(

!( !( !( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(!(
!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
!( !(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(
!( !(!( !(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!( !(
!( !(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!( !(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!( !( !( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(!( !( !(!(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(!( !( !(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!( !(
!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!( !(!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!( !( !(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!( !( !(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!( !( !( !(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!( !(

!(

!(!( !(
!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(
!(
!(
!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(
!( !( !( !( !(

!(

!(!(!(!(!( !(!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(!(!(!( !(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!( !( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(
!( !(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!( !(!(
!(
!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(!( !( !(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !(!( !(!(
!(

!(!(!( !(!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!( !(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!( !(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !(

!( !( !(
!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(
!( !(

!(!(
!( !(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(
!(!( !(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(
!(!(!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(
!( !(

!( !( !(!( !( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!( !( !( !(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!( !(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!( !(!( !(!(!(

!( !(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(!( !(!(

!(
!( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !( !(!(
!(

!(
!(!(
!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!( !(
!( !(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!( !( !( !(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !( !( !( !( !(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!( !( !( !(

!(
!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!( !(
!(

!(
!(

!( !(

!(!(

!(

!( !(
!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!( !(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(
!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!( !(

!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!( !( !(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(!( !(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!( !( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(

!(
!(!( !(

!(
!(!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!( !( !( !( !( !(

!(
!(!(
!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(!( !(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(
!( !( !(!(

!(!(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(
!(!(!( !(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(
!(
!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!( !(!( !(

!( !(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!( !( !(!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!!

!!
!!!!!!

!!
!!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

! !
! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !
! !

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

> >

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

> >

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>>

>
>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

> >

>

>

>

>

>

>

SE  280TH  S T

21
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  260TH  S T

SE  248TH  S T

21
2T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  WAX  RD

SE
 2

71
ST

 P
L

226TH  PL  SE

20
8T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  262N D ST

SE  258TH  S T

SE  264TH  S T

220TH  AVE SE

23
2N

D 
AV

E  
SE

22
4T

H  
AV

E 
SE

23
8T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  259TH  S T

SE  252N D PL

SE  269TH  S T

SE  231ST  ST

SE  254TH  P L

SE  253R D PL

23
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  236TH  P L

SE  LA KE  WILD ER NE SS  DR S

SE  244TH  S T
23

6T
H 

AV
E 

SE

24
2N

D 
PL

 S
E

SE  285TH  S T

21
5T

H 
CT

 S
E

23
0T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  276TH  S T

237TH  PL  SE

SE  240TH  S T

SE  254TH  S T

21
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE  256TH  S T

SE  253RD PL

MAPLE  VA LLEY-B LACK  DIAM
OND RD  SE

W ITTE  RD SE

W
IT

TE
 R

D 
SE

SE  WAX  RD

SE  260TH  S T SE  260TH  S T

SE  253R D PL

SE  271S T  PL

WITTE  R
D S

E

W
IT

TE
 R

D 
SE

SE  WAX  RD

W
IT

TE
 R

D 
SE

W ITTE  RD SE

SE  276TH  S T

WITTE  RD SE

22
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  2 56 TH  PL

21
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE  2 5 8T H  ST

SE  258TH  S T

SE  KE NT- KAN GLEY  R D

222ND PL  SE

22
2N

D 
AV

E  
SE

214TH
 AVE  SE

21 3 TH 
PL 

S E

216TH 
AVE 

SE

SE  271S T PL

SE  268TH  S T

SE  267TH  S T

SE  266TH  P L

21
8T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE  270TH  S T

SE  269TH  S T

22
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

22
0T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

22
0T

H
 P

L 
SE

SE  2 6 4T H  S T

SE  266TH  S T

S E 2 65
T H W

A Y

21
6T

H  
AV

E 
SE

21
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

214TH  AVE  SE

21
6T

H  
AV

E 
SE

21
7T

H  
AV

E 
SE

W I TTE
 R

D 
SE

22 0 TH  PL  S E

SE  272N D ST

S E 2 79
TH

 S
T

22
8T

H 
A V

E  
S E22

4T
H

 P
L 

SE

SE  286TH  S T

SE  2 8 7 TH ST

SE  284TH  S T

M AP L E  R ID G E WAY  SE

SE  MAP LE R IDGE D R

SE  274 TH P L

25
5T

H  
AV

E 
SE

SE  277TH  P L

SE  281S T ST

SE  283R D ST

23
1S

T
 P

L
 S

E

23
0 T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE  280TH  S T

23
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE  282ND PL

SE  281S T ST

MA
PL

E 
VA

LL
EY

-B
LA

CK
 D

IA
M

ON
D 

RD
 S

E

23
6T

H
 P

L 
SE

SE  276TH  S T

23
3R

D  
A V

E  SE

SE  282ND ST

SE 28 3RD ST

SE  280TH P L

S E 27 9T H S T

22
8T

H  
AV

E 
SE

234T H PL SE

SE 264T H ST

SE 2 63 RD  ST

23
2N

D
 P

L 
S E

23
4T

H
 A

VE
 S

E

SE 2 67TH  PL

22
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

228TH AVE SE

SE  272N D ST

SE 26 8TH P L

SE  26 9TH  ST

SE  2 6 4 TH  PL

22
6T

H 
AV

E  
SE

22
7T

H
 P

L 
SE

SE  2 7 7 TH  ST

SE 27 8TH WAY

SE  28 0TH  ST

S E  27 3RD  P L

SE  2 67 T H PL

SE 26 1S T  P L

SE  2 6 2 N D P L

SE 264T H  ST

SE  2 40 T H  B L VD

SE  25 0 TH  S T

237TH  AVE SE

SE 24 8T H  ST

SE  2 4 7T H C T

SE 245T H  ST

SE 243R D PL

S E  2 4 3 RD  S T

23 7 TH  WAY SE

23
5T

H 
AV

E 
S E

23
1S

T 
PL

 S
E

SE  24 0 TH WAY

SE  2 4 2 ND S T

SE 239TH  ST

SE  24 1S T  P L

SE  247 TH S T

235TH  WAY  SE

23
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

23
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

22
8T

H  
AV

E  
SE SE  244TH  S TS E  24 4T H  S T

230TH WAY SE

1

2

3

Legend

routes

stormlines or streams
!( storm cb

stormwater ponds

!
!

!
!

! ! !! !!

!
!

!!!!!!!

vactoring zones

private areas

Annual Inspections

Every Third Year Inspections

Basemap

routes

> oil water filters

CB Vactoring Schedule

65 of 79



Maple Valley Storm Filter Vaults

No. Facility ID No. Location Development Name Facility Type Size # of Cartridges 
Required

1 D19910 216th Ave. SE & SE 276th St. Halthaway Glenn Precast Stormfilter Vault 11' X 29.5' = 324.5 SF 83
2 D99029 SE Kent-Kangley and east of SR 169 Four Corners Precast Stormfilter Vault 8' X 16' = 128 SF 20
3 D99030 SE Kent-Kangley and West of SR 169 Four Corners Precast Stormfilter Vault 6' X 8' = 48 SF 6

4 D99036 26634 Maple Valley Black Diamond 
Highway 

Four Corners Precast Stormfilter Vault 8' X 16' = 128 SF 22

5 D99037 26458 Maple Valley Black Diamond 
Highway 

Four Corners Precast Stormfilter Vault 8' X 16' = 128 SF 19

6 D03003 26315 230th Place SE Wilderness Hills Div 1 Precast Stormfilter Vault 8' X 16' = 128 SF 25
7 D04004 2680 - 233 Ave. SE Fernwood Lane Precast Stormfilter Vault 8' X 16' = 128 SF 14
8 D91944 26340 - 235th Avenue SE Katesridge Precast Stormfilter Vault 6' X 12' = 72 SF 5
9 D99010 224th Ave. SE & SE 240th Blvd. Precast Stormfilter Vault 8' X 16' = 128 SF 26
10 D03002 22402 SE 243rd St. Lakeside Park Precast Stormfilter Vault 8' X 16' = 128 SF 33

Total Cartridges 253

EXHIBIT B3

66 of 79



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 27, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

REGARDING THE RECENTLY-ADOPTED MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
MORATORIUM 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Moratorium Ordinance No. 08-11 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Pursuant to Section 35A.63.220 of the Revised Code of Washington, the City Council must 
hold a public hearing on Ordinance No. 08-11, passed by City Council on August 8, 2011, 
which declared an emergency and adopted a twelve-month moratorium within the City of 
Covington on the establishment, location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or continuation 
of medical marijuana dispensaries, production facilities, processing facilities, and collective 
gardens.   
 
The City Council previously adopted Findings of Fact as part of Ordinance No. 08-11.  The 
Ordinance allows for the Council to amend the Findings of Fact after the public hearing if it so 
chooses, however no changes or amendments to the previously adopted Findings of Fact are 
required. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Take no further action. 
2. Direct staff to prepare an ordinance to amend the Findings of Fact. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution          Motion         Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Acting Community Development Director 
 
 

67 of 79



ATTACHMENT 1

68 of 79



69 of 79



70 of 79



71 of 79



72 of 79



Agenda Item 2 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: September 27, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE UPDATING THE CITY OF COVINGTON 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY AMENDING THE EXISTING DOWNTOWN 
ELEMENT, TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT,  AND PARKS ELEMENT, 
CREATING A NEW SHORELINE ELEMENT, RENUMBERING THE 
REFERENCES AND APPENDICES CHAPTER, AND AMENDING THE 
COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC) SECTION 18.31.060 DESIGN 
STANDARDS STREET TYPE MAP, ADDING A SEGMENT OF 171ST AVE SE 
AS A TYPE I STREET.    

  
RECOMMENDED BY:   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

Salina Lyons, Senior Planner                                        
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Ordinance Updating the City of Covington Comprehensive Plan and CMC 
Section 18.31.060 

2. (See  Agenda Packet of August 9, 2011, Agenda Item 1 for Ordinance Exhibits A-F)                                                   
                                                  

PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                              Salina Lyons, Senior Planner    
 
EXPLANATION:   
 
As part of the required annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process, the City Council 
“docketed” three (3) Comprehensive Plan Amendments (CPA’s) and one (1) Development 
Regulation Amendment (DRA) in March of 2011.  During the ensuing nine months the city staff 
and Planning Commission processed the proposed CPA’s and DRA at several public meetings 
and a public hearing.   
 
Generally, the content of two of the amendments relates to the original recommendations of the 
Downtown Plan & Zoning Study, and more specifically to the vision of creating new downtown 
and transportation policies and regulations that focus on a new Town Center designed on the 
principles of a pedestrian-friendly “Main Street”, with buildings brought to the street frontage 
and mixed-use development with parking underground or behind buildings.  The remaining two 
amendments involve a revised parks element and a new Shoreline Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Specifically, Chapter 6 of the Parks Element was totally revised; a new Chapter 13 to the 
Shoreline Element was written to be added to the Comprehensive Plan; the Downtown Street 
Type Map Figure 4.5 in the Downtown Element, Chapter 4 was amended; and the 20-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan 2010-2029, Figure 5.7 was amended.  Finally, Covington Municipal 
Code (CMC) Section 18.31.060 Design Standards Street Type map was amended to add a 
missing segment of the proposed 171st Ave SE as a Type I Street.   

73 of 79



 
The Planning Commission held their required public hearing on June 16, 2011, and made their 
recommendation of approval of all four of the docketed Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Regulation Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan (by a 6-1 vote) to the City Council on July 
7, 2011.  The City Council held an additional public hearing on July 26, 2011, and no individuals 
testified or presented comments for Council consideration.  The city received two letters of 
comment from a property owner (Ashton) objecting to the amendments involving the segment of 
171st Ave SE being designated as a Type I Street; however, representatives of Ashton did not 
attend the Council public hearing to confirm their objection and concerns. Staff has completed 
the required 60-day Department of Commerce state agency notification and received no 
comments. In addition, the required SEPA non-project notification has been completed with a 
DNS issued on June 8, 2011. 
 
Attached is the proposed Ordinance adopting all Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Regulation Amendments as part of the 2011 annual docket.    
 
ALTERNATIVES:    

1) Adopt the proposed Ordinance for the 2011 annual docket which amends the 
Comprehensive Plan and Development Regulations, as proposed.  

2) Schedule the adoption of the 2011 annual docket at a future council meeting for action 
prior to December 31, 2011. 

3) Return the issue to the Planning Commission and/or city staff for further study and 
analysis prior to required action before December 31, 2011. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
No direct fiscal impacts are anticipated from these Comprehensive Plan Amendments and 
Development Regulation Amendment other than the cost of reproducing the new text, maps and 
tables which will be absorbed by the current budget.  
 
COUNCIL ACTION:         X   Ordinance             Resolution       X      Motion    _____Other           
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to pass an Ordinance updating the City of Covington 
Comprehensive Plan by amending the Downtown, Parks, & Transportation, 
Elements; creating a new Shoreline Element; renumbering the References & 
Appendices Chapter; and amending CMC 18.31.060 Downtown Street Types 
Map for Design Standards in the Zoning & Development Regulations, in 
accordance with Attached Exhibits A-F.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Finance Director; City Attorney. 
 

74 of 79



ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE NO. 10-11 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON UPDATING THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY 
AMENDING THE DOWNTOWN ELEMENT, CHAPTER 4; THE 
TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT, CHAPTER 5; THE PARKS 
ELEMENT, CHAPTER 6; CREATING A NEW CHAPTER 13, 
THE SHORELINE ELEMENT; RENUMBERING THE 
REFERENCES AND APPENDICES CHAPTER 13 TO CHAPTER 
14; AND AMENDING THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
(CMC) SECTION 18.31.060 DOWNTOWN ZONING DISTRICTS 
STREET TYPES MAP BY ADDING A MISSING SEGMENT OF 
THE PROPOSED 171ST AVE SE AS A TYPE I STREET.    

 
 
 WHEREAS, the city has adopted procedures for amending the Comprehensive Plan, 
consistent with the requirements for amendment prescribed by the Growth Management Act, 
Chapter 36.70A of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW); and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 14.25.050 of the Covington Municipal Code (CMC), a 
number of proposals for Comprehensive Plan amendments were submitted for City Council 
consideration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 12, 2011, the City Council considered these proposed amendments 
and adopted an official docket, directing the Planning Commission to further review and analyze 
the docketed amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and analyzed the docketed amendments 
and held a public hearing on June 16, 2011, to receive public comments on the docketed 
amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on their review and analysis of the docketed amendments and the 
public comments received, the Planning Commission forwarded its recommendations to the City 
Council on July 7, 2011, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on July, 26, 2011, to receive public 
comments on the docketed amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the city’s staff report, the 
recommendations of the Planning Commission, and the public comments received; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the docketed amendments are consistent with the 
Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW, and will protect and promote the health, safety, 
and welfare of the general public; 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

75 of 79



 
 
 
  
 Section 1

 

.  The Downtown Element, Chapter 4 of the City of Covington Comprehensive 
Plan, Figure 4.5, Downtown Street Types Map, is hereby amended as set forth in the attached 
Exhibit A, incorporated herein. 

 Section 2

 

.  The Transportation Element, Chapter 5 of the City of Covington 
Comprehensive Plan, Figure 5.7, 20-Year Capital Improvement Plan 2010-2029, is hereby 
amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit B, incorporated herein. 

 Section 3

 

.  The Parks Element, Chapter 6 of the City of Covington Comprehensive Plan, 
is hereby amended in totality as set forth in the attached Exhibit C, incorporated herein. 

 Section 4

 

.  A New Shoreline Element, Chapter 13 of the City of Covington 
Comprehensive Plan, in totality is hereby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit D, 
incorporated herein. 

 Section 5

 

.  The References and Appendices of Chapter 13 of the City of Covington 
Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended by renumbering to Chapter 14, as set forth in the 
attached Exhibit E, incorporated herein. 

 Section 6

 

.  The Covington Municipal Code (CMC), Section 18.31.060 Design Standards 
Street Types map, is herby amended by adding a missing segment of the proposed 171st Ave SE 
as a Type I Street, as set forth in the attached Exhibit F, incorporated herein. 

  
 Passed by the City Council on the 27th day of September, 2011. 

 
 
_______________________                      
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  09-30-2011                      
EFFECTIVE:   10-05-2011       

ATTESTED: 
 
 
                                          
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 

76 of 79



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date:  September 27, 2011 

 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 

6:00 p.m., October 11, 2011 – Special Meeting Study Session 
 
 

7:00 p.m., October 11, 2011 – Regular Meeting  
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

77 of 79



 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 

 

 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 

Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, October 11, 2011 - 6:00 p.m. 

 
 **Please note meeting start time ** 

 
      

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commission (if applicable) and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve 
presentations, feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key 
policy matters. 
 

CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 

1. Code Enforcement 101 (Hart) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers shall 
address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving comment from the 
public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  If additional time is 
needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows. 
 
ADJOURN      
                             
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 
24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the 
operator to dial (253) 638-1110.  
 
 
*Note* A Regular Council meeting will immediately follow at approximately 7:00 pm 

Draft 
As of 9/22/11 

78 of 79

http://www.ci.covington.wa.us/�


Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, October 11, 2011                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 

**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Approval of Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers. (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Inattentive Driving Ordinance (Klason) 
2. Consider Ordinance Regarding Banking Services (Hendrickson) 
3. City Manager 2012 Budget Message Presentation (Matheson) 
4. Discuss Covington Community Park Budget (Matheson)  

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  If needed 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

Draft 
As of 9/22/11 

79 of 79

http://www.ci.covington.wa.us/�

	09-27-11 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, September 27, 2011                                                                    City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION

	Consent 1 Green Sheet 09-27-11 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent 1 Attachment 1 08.23.11 Reg CC
	Consent 1 Attachment 2 09.13.11 Reg CC
	Consent 2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 09-27-11
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent 2 Attachments
	Consent 3 Green Sheet 09-27-11 Covington Water Franchise Blue Sheet
	Consent 3 Attachment 1 09-27-11 Covington Water Franchise Agreement - FINAL
	Consent 4 Green Sheet 09-27-11 All Hazards Reg'l  Coord MOU Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent 4 Attachment 1 09-27-11 All Hazards Reg'l Coord MOU-City of Covington
	Consent 5 Green Sheet 09-27-11 Storm Cleaning Contract - NW Stormwater Management
	Consent 5 Attachment 1 09-27-11 Storm Sewer Cleaning Contract
	City of Covington
	Attn:  Maintenance Supervisor
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Derek Matheson
	NORTHWEST STORMWATER MANAGEMENT LLC
	By: Dave Clark
	COUNTY OF ____________)
	GIVEN my hand and official seal this ___ day of _________________, 2011.
	Exhibit A2 Covington Vactor map.pdf
	zone1
	zone2
	zone3
	zone4

	Exhibit A3 Covington Stormfilter Inventory.pdf
	Sheet1

	Exhibit B3 Maple Valley Stormfilter Vaults Descriptions.pdf
	Sheet1


	Item 1 Blue Sheet 09-27-11 Medical Marijuana
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ord. 08-11
	Item 2 Blue_Sheet_Adopting_2011_Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment_Docket_9-27-11_Final
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 Ord _Adopting_2011_Comp_Plan_Amendments_Final
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	10-11-11 Special Meeting Study Session
	Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington
	Tuesday, October 11, 2011 - 6:00 p.m.
	CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA


	10-11-11 Regular Meeting following a study session
	Tuesday, October 11, 2011                                                                        City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE




